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Partnerships built on trust

As I reflect on this first year as Chair of The London
Community Foundation (LCF), I am struck by the
overwhelming power and importance of partnership.

Qur partnerships come in many forms. With the
charitable organisations we seck to serve and
work alongside - through them we learn from the
profound community trust, reach and insight that
they bring. With the danors and funders whose
impact ambitions we help guide and develop.
With the people whose life axperiences so often
help shape and inform our work. And of course,
the LCF team whose expertise and determination
have propelled our work forward this year.

Without just ane of these critical components,

we are not The London Community Foundation:
accountable, impoctiul and resolute in connecting
London's consfituents to help drive social change
and equality across the Capital’s communities.

We present these Accounts when the world has
been thrown into uncertainty by COVID-19.

The crisis has shone a light on the deep-rooted
inequalities we have long known exist but failed to
tackle as a society. It will be the most vulnerable
who are hil the hardest and for longest. London is
no exceplion to this, and its communities are in our
thoughts and plons looking forward.

Acknowledging the incredible challenges thal

lie ahead, it's perhaps all the more important
that LCF, for its team, Trustees, donors and
beneficiaries, can record the achievements made
in ilhie year leading up to COVID- 19,

Duiiny Ihis first year of our new strategy, LCF
committed over 760 gronis just exceeding £9M

in value. Donors have responded positively to our
revised fund products, including the first year of our
Themed Pooled Funds. We ended the year with o
planned modest surplus, allowing us to devote funds
to invest in key development work - including teom
training, digitol and operational improvements.

I am also heartened to see o greater move to
higher value and multi-year funding to help the
resilience of London’s community organisations,
And to the shining examples of donors and funders
waorking with us, and each other, to tackle the
issues that matter 1o London. Of note, we launched
The Evening Standord Dispossessed Fund (ESDF)
Excluded initiative, with our colleagues at The
Evening Stondard, tech entrepreneur Marlin
Moshal and the John Lyon's Charity.

NS,

HHNEN

This pioneering 3-year initiative will work with 8
schools to develop whole-school models to cut
pupil exclusions. And equolly of significonce, the
Home Office has joined donors on our othe: £50F
initiative, Save London Lives, tackling violence
offecting young panple.

This year we also initioted work on the Violence
Agoainst Women and Girls Grassroots Fund
commissioned by the Moyor's Office for Policing
and Crime. Though the launch was COVID-19
delayed we are incredibly proud to have secured
this important fund for London. Co-design, service
user voice and community representation will sit at
the heart of its work going forward.

And so, the end of the financial year has brought
the importance of our partnerships into sharp
focus as we launched into a full-scale appeal and
gency sesp We are incredibly grateful
to the donors and funders who have stood with
us and to the grasstools organisations whose
response we hove been privileged to support, and
1o the LCF team who make this happen.

Russell Prior
Chair

Trustees’ Annual Report
and Financia! Statements

Averuye grant size
to organisations

/465

Grants awarded

£910901533

Value of grants committed

S AN

Londoners reached

1
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i - gy S

people and communities that have the solutions?
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In d‘o;uLg‘s&we have to represent th the voice and

ambilions of all pariners 1o each other

Ycung pauple their voice and expencnce of

It is rase thereis o grossrools organisation in
e a——t—
[ondon that one of the LCE teom does nof knowd
[ Scap— q
ven if we have yet to Iund themThey are the
e himhon of gooio l\nowledge This year's"Annual
Report Tustraies some of the key Themofic areas
IRt ourwork has focused onTbur of equal valve
————
1o what we fund[is how we fundFocusing our]

Sy —
Orgamsuhons new 10 LCEIGOing [orword we musty
and vul! conlmue 10 chullenge ourselves {0 ensuie

from our longstanding partner, the Wimbledon
Foundation on the appraach of their Homelessness
Fund. The debate - often necessarily

fortable - di d the imp e of
diversity of perspective and experience.

We ended the financial yeor standing in alliance
with London’s funding community. LCF signed
#WeStandwithSector, o series of responsible
funding principles during @ crisis. And we joined
forces with over 60 London funders to collaborate
on the London Communily Response, designing
gency ond lundmg prog
for the choritabl bilising critical
support following lhe COVID-19 outbreak.

t am incredibly grateful to the LCF team and to the
Trustees for their expertise, insight, and support,
particulorly as we look forward with uncertainty
but with sure knowledge of the role we must take
for London’s communities.

Kate Markey
CEO
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£120%268

Median annual income
of the organisations we
supported

£2001000

Our largest grant to
an organisation




Our impact
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Grenfell Young
People’s Fund
Total

Over
£1.3
million
raised

since January 2019

Photagraph by}
Daniel Hambiry/ Stello Pictures Lid
© of Evening Standard
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The London Impact

Our impact Awards had
four categories
celebrating

London organisations

leading the way in
building positive
futures for children
and young people
at risk.

kliwaslanthonountolbenominated|
fogthelawardfHoweverdilonly,
reallyjputithisialilintolperspective]
duringjthelawardsleveningy
(wherebyilwaslabletolgainlinsights)
intothelamazingiworkloflother
lorganisationslandjyounglleadersy
Beingrecognisedlinithelsamellight
pridelandprovidedimejwithlfurther
lammunitionjtojbejthelchange s

[Thislyeargs!
winnersiwere:

Best Innovator:

) ThelBeniKinsellairust
the inaugural London Impact AwordsTAimed at recognising .
the peaple’ond organisationsworking 1o reduce the impact of Best,Collaborator:
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shortlisted Diganisations)
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Octoberd2019;

Lounched our ‘Voices from the
Frontline’ report

[

Kate Markey, Chief Executive, and
Francis Salway, former Chair of
Trustees, fisted in The Progress 1000:
London’s most influential people -

Awarded £400,000 through the
Wimbledon Foundation’s special grants

~ * y M l initiative supporting homelessness
LC F h Ig h I Ig hts organisations - ‘A Roof for All’
by month

The Evening Standard Dispossessed
fund Excluded Initiative launched
with the John Lyon’s Charity and tech

Activists: Philanthropy entrepreneur Marlin Moshal

Portnered with Microsoft to mark opening
of their London flagship store with

a Community Fund supporting digital
skills training

Inaugural London Impact Awards -
Powering Youth supporied by the Cili
Foundation opened for applications

LCF chosen to manage the Mayor’s
Office for Policing and Crime's (MOPAC)
Violence Against Women and Girls
{VAWG} Grassroots Fund

[April}2019]

London Marathon - 19 runners raised
£32,000 for LCF

Paid out over £1 million in grants in
one day

Deutsche Bank Opportunities fund
launched - with a new focus on supporling

tondon Mayor’s Violence Reduction Unit

announced £1.4 million funding with
LCF for local community groups tackling

homelessness organisations in Newham

[Novemberg2019)

LCF's annual supporters event

discussing homelessness held RS : US U _—

,'.) ClRes - 5 London Impact Awards ceremony
/

knife crime

Septembert2019)

UKCF, the membership body for
[ ity foundations in the UK, held
their ‘Empowering communities
together’ conference

IMar ch}2020]

LCF signed London Funders ‘We Stand
with the Sector’ Funders’ Statement in
response to the COVID-19 crisis

against young people Launched London Communities

Coronavirus appeal

Lo ” \ I . i The National E ies Trust
The Home Office backed the Evening ; ) v December, m e Nationa mergxlenrclesh r:s .
Standard - Save London Lives initiative /, AN bt : Coronavirus Appeal launched wil
with £500,000 ‘ Ao d‘z ] community foundations working in
: é \ i Peabody Young People’s Fund pilot partnership to deliver funds locally
'1\, ) launched, aimed ot addressing violence
R

+ fJunel2019,

Nearly £1.3 million distributed through
Cockayne - Granls for the Arts

Over £300,000 awarded to 10
organisations through the second round of
the ESDF Grenfell Young People’s Fund




Financial
Statements

Trustees’ Annual
Report and Financial
Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Charity No. 1091263
Company No. 4383269
londoncf.org.uk

Trustees” Annual Report
and Finoncial Statements

Report of the Trustees

Ths Trustees present their Annual Statutory Report
together with the Financiol Stafements of The
London Community Foundation for the year ended
31 March 2020. The Report has been prepored in
compliance with Part 8 of the Charities Act 2011,
The Financial Statemeants have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting policies set out

in note 1 to the Financial Stolements and comply
with the charitable company’s M dum and
Arlicles of Association, applicable laws and the
requirements of Accounting and Reporting by

applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of
treland {FRS 102).

The Tiustees’ Report is also o Directors’ Report for
the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 ond other
company legislation ond meets the requi

for o Strategic Report as set oul in the Companies
Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report)
Regulations 2013.

Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice

Legal and administrative

information

Name of Charity:
The London Community Foundation {LCF)

Stalus:
Charity registered in England and Wales -
number 1091263

Company limited by guarantee registered in

England & Wales - number 4383269

Principal office and registered oddress:
Unit 1.04, Piono House,

9 Brighton Terrace,

London.

Sw9 8DJ
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Trustees:

The Trustees serving during the
period of report and up to the date
of approvat of this report were:

Russell Prior
Chair {from December 2019)

Rosanna M Machado
Vice Chair

Kate Markey

Chief Executive Officer. Also,
Company Secretary {from August
2019)

Kelly Rust:

Director of Granis and Impact

Other principo! officers serving
during the period were:

David Nagle:
Timothy C Ingram Director of Business Development
Chair of Audit, Risk and | and C ications {Until January
Committee 2020)
Gaynor Humphreys Benjamin Clarkson:

Nicholas T J Reid
Paul G Cattermul!
Sanjoy Mazumder

John Hume
(from December 2019)

Francis W Salway
Chair {until December 2019)

Martin E Richards
Vice Chair {until Muich 2020)

Patricia K Biggers
{until November 2019)

W Rhys Moore

Chair of Programmes and Grants
Committee and Trustee {until March
2020)

Principal officers /
Senior Management

Team:
The serving principal officers on the

date of approval of this Report were:

Director of Finance and Resources
ond Company Secretary [Until
August 2019)

Rebecca Crosweller:

Director of Business Development
and Communications {Until April
2019)

Auditor:
Buzzacott LLP
130 Wood Street
Llondon

EC2V 60L

Legal Advisors:
Bates Wells & Braithwaite
London LLP

2-6 Cannon Street

London

EC4M 6YH

Bankers:

CAF Bank

25 Kings Hill Avenue
Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent

ME19 4J

NatWest:

504 Brixton Road

London

SW9 8EW

CCLA Investment Manogement
Limited - Cash Deposit Accounts
Senator House

85 Queen Victoria Street

Llondon

ECAV 4ET

Investment

Managers:

CCLA Investment Management?
Limited - Investment of
Endowment

Senotor House

85 Queen Victoria Street

London

EC4V 4ET

Sarasin & Pariners LLP (Until
June 2019)

Juxon House

100 St Paul’s Churchyard
Llondon

EC4M BBU

| Statements

Implication$ of COVID-19

At the start of COVID- 19, LCF Trustees worked with
the Senior Managemeni Team {SMT) to ensure
strategic oversight of the Charity's requirements

to Team, Donors, Beneficiaries and Suppliers in
relation lo COVID-19. Work was overseen by the
full Board and specific work areas delegated to
Sub-Committees.

The organisalion moved smoothly to virtuol

P covering the operaling envi for
the team, including wellbeing, financial procedures
both in terms of general operations and gront
making; heightened control measures in light of
funds under operations both in terms of increased
volume and virlual risk management.

Trustees established a series of sirategic principles
for LCF's COVID-19 related grant moking which
hove been itored regularly. The Sub-C
moved info forinightly engagement with the SMT,
alongside Risk Matrix reporting 1o the full Board of
Trustees. Emergency funding to Londen's grassroots
was managed by a project team from across the
ganisation. LCF's procedures were d
carefully balancing the need to expediently deploy
funds olongside potential heightened risk of fraud,

learning we clso shared with other funders in London.

At the stort of COVID-19 LCF Trustess clso set

a series of principles in itoring icted
income levels from its own Appeal and through
partners UKCF and the National Emergencies Trust,
acknowledging the high-profile nature of the funds
and also the needs on the ground. This takes into
considerotion LCF’s reputation os a major funder in
London and our longstanding donor relationships
and goodwill held with our wider stakeholders.

These principles have been monitored through the
COVID- 19 pandemic and are reported on LCF's
website and to donors.

LCF Trustees continue to review the potential
long-term impact of COVID-19 on the Charity’s
sustainabilily, including forecast tost Donor Advised
Funds not related to COVID-19, performance of

its own and Donors’ Endowments, unsustainoble
cost management and the long-term impact of
remote working in relation to premises costs. This

is alongside the Trustees oversight of health and
sofety ond wellbeing of the LCF team.

LCF does no! hold a defined pension scheme.

We confinue to shore learning and insights with our
peer communily foundations as part of the UKCF
network on future impoct whilst also understanding
- through working with pariners ia London - the
implications for the grassroots and small charities
we suppart,
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Objectives and activities

Our vision is of a strong and generous London
where residents, business, government, and civil
society are inspired to act for the benefit of all who
live in their city, leading the woy in social action
and philanthropic activity.

Qur mission is to inspire the Capital’s generosity
and invest in froniline grassrools organisations to
help build strong and connected communities.

London is a diverse city, in which complex social
problems exist. We believe that communities often
characterised as poor and disodvantaged ore rich
with ideos and assets. When these ideas and assets
are masimised, small charities and community
groups can make a big difference.

The London Community Foundation is not a
traditional grant-maoking trust or charitable

2. Other exclusively charitable purposes
in the United Kingdom and elsewhere with
a preference for those which are in the
opinian of the Trustees beneficial for the
Area of Benefit.

The ‘Area of Benefit’ for LCF is the London Boroughs
and the City of tondon.

Qur core activities are:

1. funding predominantly small charities
and community groups which focus on
community-based action and projects that
do not attract mass public support.

We strive to make our grant-making process
proporfionate and accsssible to small
gani LCF’s ‘Gronl-making Policy and

foundation. Our role is to inspire corp ond
individual philanthropy and public bodies to
support the Capital’s grassroots charities and
community groups.

LCF's objects, as defined in the Memorandum and
Articles of Associalion are:

" )

The p ion of any i purp for the

Procedures’ sets out the guiding principles, process
for setting fund criterin, and procedures that are
common to all of LCF's funds and programmes.

We remoin accountable lo the sector by regular
grantee and non-grantee engagement o ensure our
funds are best informed by their needs. We work to
build a sirong evidence base for small charities, their
i i and their funding needs to

benefit of the community in the ‘Area of Benefit’
and in parliculor the advancement of education, the
protection of good health both mentol and physical,
the relief of poverty and sickness and the provision,
in the interests of social vellare, of:

1. Facilities for recreation or other leisure
time occupation with the object of improving
the conditions of life of the persons for
whom the opportunities and facilities are
primarily intended.

p 9
demonstrate how best donors can help.

Wherever possible, we strive to include community
members and people with lived experience in fund
design and grant-making decision panels.

2. Inspiring individual and carporate
philanthropy to give to London’s frontline
small charities and community groups.
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We do this by promoling our expertise, reach
and understanding of small charities in London.
This includes thought leadership, analysis, and
engogement avents, providing an experl window
on the sector. Through our knowledge, we help
donors get close to the issues affecting London
and build a compelling case far haw grassrants
organisations can help.

3. Fund management and
grant-making services:

Through our donor-advised fund (DAF) model,

we provide professional investment services to
donors setling up and managing permanent and
expendable endowment funds. LCF works with o
third-party investment house to provide this service.

We also manage public sector funds on behalf
of local and centra! government deporiments.
All donors benefit from LCF's established ond
professional grant-making services, includi

fund set-up, due diligence, assessment, gront
depl portfoli g t and impact
reporling. We also work with the wider wealth
advisory market to inform and suppor! how they
engage their clients’ giving.

As the primary DAF service dedicated to London,
LCF aims 1o build community assets in the form of
endowments which can respond to changing needs
over fime and provide a sustainable source of
funding for charities and community organisations
in London. At 31 March 2020, LCF held
£19,597,000 (2019: £20,886,000) in endowment
funds, the variance due mainly to market conditions
at the end of the financial yeor as a result of
COVID-19.

Endowment funds held have been raised
primarily through:

0. Individuols and companies thal want to
create a legacy in a particular geography
of cause.

b. Teust transfers. Charitable Trusts con be
wransferred to LCF {as with other community
foundations}, with the support of initiatives
like the Revitalising Trusts Initiative by the
Charity Commission. LCF can honour the
original objectives and/or work with Trust
representafives lo revive them for modern day
needs. Trusts may be transferred if they have
become dormant or inelfective, or if Trustees
feel that LCF will help to increase the impact of
their charitable assets.

Structure, governance
and management

LCF is o Company Limited by Guarentee (CLG) and
a Registered Charity g d by its M !
and Articles of Association.

The Directors of the charitable company are
its Trustees for the purposes of charity law and
throughout this report are referred to os the Trustees.

Appointment, induction
and training of Trustees

As set out in the Arficles of Associction, new
Trustees are appointed by the Trustees in office.
There are no powers of appointment of co-option
by ony exiernal organisation. New Trustees

are appointed through an external recruitment
process, including non-executive search agencies,
nomination by other Trustees, dati

Trustees’ Annual Report
and Financial Statements

oppropriate. New Trustees receive key induction
inf ion including M dum and Articles,
latest statutory and manogement accounts, strategy,
impact reports and other literature. Introductory
briefings with the CEO and key staff are provided,
and all Trustees are asked 1o serve on at least one
Sub-Commitiee.,

Structure

The Trustees meet quarterly and between these
meelings, business is conducted through the three
sub-committees. These are Programmes and
Grants, Audit, Risk and Investment, and
Nominati and R ation.

The Prog and Gronts C

meets four times a year and includes o minimum of
two Trustees. It has ulfimate authority, delegated by
the Trustees, to approve gronts recommended by
the panels. The Commitiee also has the power to

from d individuals, with LCF
through professional ks and ¢ ity
g The Nominations & R
Sub-Committee of the Boord is responsible for
inations and makes rec dotions to the full
Board of Trustees on appointments.

At 31 Maich 2020 LCF had 8 trustees (maximum

18), including people who were formerly Trustees
of the other London foundations that have merged
with LCF since 2011.

Prior to appointment, prospective Trustees meet with
the Chair, CEO and are interviewed by a Panel
of Trustees, as well os meeting key staff where

del authority to senior stalf to approve grants
where appropriate. hority currently
sits with the Senior Management Team for standard
risk grants under £25,000.

The Prog and Gronts C ittee leads on

LCF's impact sirategy, including its grant-making
policy, strategic operations, ond bes! praclice.

Ouring the year, LCF also partners with individuals
from the communities in which we work, to provide
insight and help inform grant-moking. We do this
1o ensure our work is rooted in, and shoped by, the
experience and voice of london's communities.
The Trustees and Team wish to exprass their sincere
appreciation to expertise and knowledge of these
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individuals during the year, including those
people involved in the Grenfell Young People’s
Fund; the Evening Standard Dispossessed Fund
Save London lives; the Peabody Young People’s
Fund; and awordees and nominees to the London
Impact Awards.

The Audit, Risk and Investment Committee
meets four limes a year and comprises a minimum
of two Trustees. It is responsible for overseeing LCF’s
finances, risk, und investments, The Commiltee is
responsible for:

* monitoring and reviewing the perf of
LCF’s i and | M

- recommending the budgel, business plan and
targets to the Board of Trustees for approval;
gularly itoring and reviewing the
managemenl accounts of LCF,

reviewing the draft statutory financiol
statements and recommending approval
1o the Board of Trustees;

receiving the reporis of LCF's Auditor;

finonciol policies and controls, reserves policy
and i ond end pending

policies; and

- overseeing risk monagement.

The Nominations and Remunerations
Committee meels quarterly and ot other times
as required. The Nominations and Remunerations
Committee is responsible for:

«leading on g and trustee recruil
- overseeing LCF's equily, diversity and inclusion as
delegated by the Board of Trustees;

« providing oversight on organisational cullure
ond human includi i
of LCF 1eam.

g

Day-to-doy operation of LCF is the responsibility of
the Senior Management Team {SMT). The average
number of team members employed during the year
using a full-ime equivalent basis wos 18 {2019: 19},

The SMT reports formally to the Board of Trustees
every quarler on progress agoinst targels and
the business plan and presents proposals on
forward sirotegy.

LCF is a quality accredited member of UK

ity foundations, the bership body thot
supports and p ity foundations in
the UK. There are 46 quality accredited community
foundations serving most of the UK population.
With endowment funds of over £800M, over
15,000 donors and annual grant-making in the last
year exceeding £100M, the network is the fourth
largest grant maker in the country.

LCF does not have ony branches or subsidiaries
other than the Pedlar’s Acre Trust and the Beaufoy
Trust, both of which hold permanent endowments
and have LCF os their sole Trustee.

Trustees’ Annual Report
and Financiol Statements

Public benefit statement

Trustees of o charity have a duty to report in their
Annuol Report on their charity’s public benefit. The
Trustees of LCF have considered the public benefit

quil which are explained on the Charity
Commission website.

The remainder of this report sets out LCF's
objectives, and report on the acfivity and successes
in the year to 31 March 2020, as well as
explaining the plons for the current financiol year.
tCF's work benefils a range of smoll charities and
community groups and their beneficiaries.

The Trustees have considered this matter
and concluded that:

1. The aims of the orgoanisation continue to be
charitoble;

2. The aims and the work done give identifiable
benefits 1o the charitable sector and both
indirectly ond directly benefit individuals in
need;

3. The benefits are for the public and are
not unreasonably restricted in any way and
certainly not by ability to pay; and

4. There is no detrimenl or harm orising from the
aims or aclivilies.

Strategic report

2019/20 objectives,
achievements and
performance

Following the appointment of o new CEQ last year,
19/20 also saw LCF welcome a new Choir and
Trustee. The Trustees hove made a commitment to
additional recruitment to the Board into 20/21 to
ensure LCF continues to represent the diversity of
London’s communilies as well os the range of skills
and perspectives the Chority requires.

In the first year of its new strategy and driving

LCF’s purposeful convening role, the Charity made
good progress. We ended the year with a planned
modest surplus €10k [agoinst a budgeted position

of £32k) but also ollowing ourselves to invest in
key areas of work from general running costs.

Encouraging donors to give differently has
featured heavily throughout the year, including
moving to multi-year funding, core funding and
importantly collaborating with other funding
partners.

The voice of London’s communities has featured
throughout our work ~ on fund design, communily
panels, guest blogs and events and we are
committed to building on and learning from this
activily in the year chead.

We report below against our primary
strategic objectives:
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1. Inspiring London’s
generosity

We will seek to diversiy and sustainably grow
LCF’s donor base:

This year sow LCF introduce new fund values and
products with donors - Ways to Give - focusing on
how we can increase the sustained impact for both
grassroots orgonisations and those people and
companies seeking to support them. Ways to Give
was received well by new donors ond we continue
to work with existing donors to support their giving
against these new products.

We launched LCF’s External Advisory Group and will
be building on its engagement with the Charity next
year, supporting LCF’s profile and engagement in the
wealth advisory and professionat services space.

Al the end of the financial year, our collaboration
with Ianden funders to respond to COVID- 19
saw signifi of other foundoli
partners, who don’t fundraise, directing companies
and individuals to LCF. We have o key role -
alongside other agencies in London - to help those
who can support, navigate their way through the
opportunities to give in the Capitol,

During the year we secured a aumber of new high
value trust transfers from the weolth advisory space
and individual donors seeking to collaborate on
initiotives delivered by LCF.

We volve all our partnerships that collectively
enable LCF to sustain its support to London's
ities. Of particular note this year i

The ESDF Grenfell Young People’s Fund:

The second year of this important fund for the
communily in and around the Grenfell Tower
committed almost £570,000 (19 mulii-year grants)
fo g organisations and charifies supporting
children and young people. Led by o community
panel of people affected by the tragedy, 20/2)
viill be the final year of this fund ond we are
commitied to copturing the impact and personal
stories that fie behind it. We are grateful for the
further funds donated in year including royalty
donations from the Artists for Grenfell single.

ESDF Save London Lives:

We are grateful to the Home Office ond 1o L&Q
Housing Association for their support to this initiotive
supporling young people at risk or affected by knife
crime. This year the fund committed £957,638 and
is providing copacity-building support {co-designed
with the gi ganisations) and evaluati

We are delighted Citi Foundation, a | di
partner to LCF, conlinues ta he a significant
supporter of this work also. And we are grateful

to the Evening Standard for our longstanding and
impactful relationship.

Peabody Community Fund:

The Peabody Housing Association’s charilable
foundation was a strong partnership during the
yeor, both through its Community Fund and our
pilol, the Peabody Young People’s Fund. The
Community Fund committed almost £300,000
{17 multi-year grans) supporting community
activity in ond around its homes.

The voice of young people featured heavily in LCF's
delivery of the governmeni’s #iwill programme. In
partnership with our UKCF community foundalions,
the fund supported £252,253 (28 gronis) to
empower young people in social action.

tondon Impact Awards:
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2. Funding for London

Agginst o targe! of £8,260,000 from existing ond new
donors in 19/20 we secured £8,966,000 to support
London’s communities. This was achieved through LCF's
work with the following partners and donors:

In February, LCF partnered with the Cili Foundati
1o hold the inaugural tonden Impact Awords, to

gnise people and isafions working to
reduce the impact of knife crime ond violence on
young Londoners. Awards totalling £90,000 were
given alongside nominee videos moade for all the
shorilisted organisations.

€SDF: The Excluded Initiative:

Working with the lech entrepreneur Martin Moshal,
The Evening Standard and the John Lyon’s Charily,
LCF awarded £225.000 to 4 schools for o 3-year
period. Matching funds from the John Lyon’s Charity
for a further 4 schools, the programme will support
8 schools to develop whole-school approaches to
reducing permanent exclusions.

Violence Reduction Unit, Mayor of London:
In the London’s Mayor’s Violence Reduction Unit
partnered with LCF to oward 37 organisations a
total of £1,367,691 for their work on the ground
supporting young people at risk. The work included
collab events with g to build on and
innovate ideos to reduce violence.

Trusts and Foundations N%
Corporate Philanthropy 26%
Local Government 2%

Individual Philanthropy 10%
Central Government 2%

Grant-making during 2019/20 totalled
£9,090,533 with 765 grants made to small
charities, ity groups and individuals. The
specific breakdown ot grants is:

Grant awards to individuals (147) £31,992

Grant awards to instilutions {618) £9,058,54}

(During this year, LCF made the sirategic decision to
move owoy from grants to individuals).
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3. Increase our accountability
to London’s grassroots

Voices from the Frontline - the largest
beneficiary analysis conducted by LCF - published
in year provided o compelling picture of whot it
means to be a grassroots arganisation in London,
their organisational needs, and the wider funding
environment. The report conlinues to support our
engagement with donors. We secured 6 new

high volue multi-year funds providing g
organisations with increased surety of future funding,
pporling greater isational resili

In November, our Annual Event was dedicated

to sh ing the work of g homel
organisations in London. Providing o platform

for their voice and experience lo London’s
philanthropi ity, alongside local authority
representation, the event also featured LCF’s long-
time partner, the Wimbledon Foundation, and their
new Homalassness Fund.

4. Invest in LCF's digital
capabilities

Work to progress LCF's digital capabiliies was
inifiolly stower than plonned but in the loter part of the
year preparations for emergency work for COVID-19
saw us move our gront-making procedures and
current digital work completely virtual.

Though not as we had plonned, the benefits we
hove experienced from this transition has been
significant and o priority for next year will be to
analyse long-term gains for LCF organisationally, for
grantees and for donors and partners.

5. Maintaining impactful
grant-making procedures

During 19/20 LCF received o total of 1,573
opplications from small charities and community
groups funding with a totol value request of just
over £21,000,000. Looking forward into to next
year, this figure will look substantially different due
to COVID-19. A total of 765 applications were
successhul totalling £9,090,533. Success ratio of
44% against volume and 43% agoinst value. This
is o strong result for LCF in manoging applicotion
demand, guiding, and supporting organisations in
their application process.

In line with our strategy to help buitd organisational
resili ofthe g isations LCF
supporls, we saw an increase in the average

grant size to orgonisotions committed to £14,658
(compared to £13,377 in 2018/ 19). These figures
include mulii-year commitments made subject to
receipt of funding from our partners.

The Programmes Team engaged in o range of
development opportunities linked to the technical
aspects of grant making and also thematic work,
including violence against women and girls.

LCF revised its eligibility criterio for funding,
developed by the Progrommes Team. We will
continue to review this work, particularly in

light 6f COVID- 19. Work to improve our grant-
moking procedures is on ilerative process, linked

significantly to our digital improvement programme.
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Financial review

Income

The totol income for the year 2019/20 wos
£9,796,000 compared to 2018/19 was
£9,255,000. Donations came from a range of
donors including companies, central and locol

g , indivi phi pists, and social
sector organisations. The breakdown is as follows:

« Unrestricted income from donations for the year
2019/20is £914,000 compared to £816,000 in
2018/19, an increase of 12%.

« Restricted voluntary income received for the
year 2019/20 was £7,906,000 compared to
£7,441,000 in 2018/19, on increase of 6%.

- Invesiment income increased slightly to
£761,000 compored with £747,000 in 2018/19
{an increase of 2%). The smali increase partly
reflects the increase in endnwments held but iz
also due to strong financial performance of the
related investments

+ Income from other trading activities in 2019/20
was £69,000 compared with £53,000 in
2018/19 {un increase of 30%). This relates
specifically to rental income from sub-letting
office space.

Expenditure

The Statement of Financiol Activifies shows our
expendilure anclysed between the costs of raising
funds and the cost of our charitable work, with
support costs {including governance cosls) being
allocated across each. )

‘Charitable activities’ represents all grants made to
beneficiary organisalions and individuals as well
as expenditure on capacity building and evaluation
related to some of LCF's funds and initiatives to
support grassroots organisations. It also includes
the cost of running gront-making operations

and associated support costs. Gronts payable

in 2019/20 totalled £8,905,000 compared to
£7,696,000 in 2018/19 {an increase of 16%).

LCF’s main cost is our team, which represented
60% of the Charity’s expenditure {excluding grant
awunds) in 2019/20. This compares to 62% in
2018/ 19). Staff costs ore ollocated to the costs

of raising funds and charitable activities based on
time spent on these oclivities. Support leom costs
are allocated in a simitor manner, Team costs have
slightly increosed to £895,000 from £881,000

in 2018/19 {an increase of 2%). The Charily's
headcount decreased slightly to 18 average full-
time equivolent staff {2018/19: 19).
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Cash position

LCF's cash bolances {excluding any cash held

by the | Managers) hove i dto
£5,195,000 during 2019/20 up from £4,335,000
al the end of 2018/19, largely due to the receipt
of i income on i Cash held

by LCF mainly represents restricted funds held for
the purposes of grant-making and of this bolance
£4,703,000 rep d icted and end.

funds (2018/19: £3,974,000). LCF works with
donors lo sel a timetable for spending restricted
funds throughout the year. Various factors determine
the length of time funds are held in cash, including
needs of the community and grant appliconts, as
well as internal resources and planning.

At the end of 2019/20, of the £704,000
{2018/19: £695,000] free reserves: £442,000
is a cash balance representing unrestricted funds
{2018/19: £310,000) and £251,000 is invested
{2018/19 £259,000), leaving other net assats

of £11,000 {2018/ 19 £126,000). The foll in
unrestricted net assets since 2018/19 is due to o
general reduction in our debtors and creditors. The
invested funds, which are held under the Reserves
Policy, are not expected to be needed in the short
lerm and con be invested to generate o higher
return than current interest rates allow. During
2018/ 19, Trustees designated £50,000 of the
Charity’s unrestricted fund to its digital investment
programme; as at 31 March 2020 these funds are
held entirely as cash.

Diversity of income and
financial sustainability

Our business plan sets out thot LCF should aim
that no one programme should contribute more
than 20% of the Charity’s income or 35% of the
Charity’s grant-making in ony year, this goal has
been achieved for 2019/20.

Investments

LCF's i gers are CCLA )
Management Ud and Sarasin & Partners LLP {until
06 June 2019). LCF has set o clear invesiment palicy
which is driven by the Charity’s principles. This
policy is d lly and is consistent with
Trustees’ responsibilities under the Charities Act.

In setiing the performance criteria agoinst which
the performance of the investment portfolio is
managed, the aim is to achiave lang-term capitat
and income growth, whilst also providing o
reasonable level of income onnually. The investment
managers’ performance and the degree of risk
considered appropriate for LCF's investments are
reviewed each year.

The total value of funds invested, including cash held
by i for d
to £20,786,000 {2019: £21,880,000). The

market value movement in the yeor represented an
uvnrealised loss, slightly offset by sales of investiments
for grant-making purposes during the year.

(The funds invested at Sarasin & Partners LLP were
valued at £10,631,000 at 31 March 2019 and the
funds held ot CCLA were volued at £11,239,000 at
3) March 2019).

The portfolio at CCLA is invested in the investment
managers’ own pooled funds with underlying
holdings in @ broad spread of international “blue
chip” equities, fixed income stocks and olternative
i The total i perf e

of the funds and the peer group comparison are
shown below.
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LCF's Audit, Risk and Investment Sub-Committee
reviews investment performance regulorly. LCF
takes a long-term view and measures the long-
term performance ogainst the ARC Steady Growth
benchmark. The beachmark is a dard indi

of relative performance used by the investment
industry and charities. CCLA provide quarterly
reports and present to the Sub-Committee at least
once a year whilst also responding to specific
requests cluring the yeor.

Total i t Total i

| Total i
i performance in
year to 31 March
1 2020 (net of fees
L and costs)

performancein | performance
year to 31 March | annualised three-
2019 {net of fees | year return to 31
and costs) March 2020 {net
of fees and costs)

{peer group comparison}

CCLA - COIF Investment {0.05%) 1.53% 5.52%
Fund
ARC Steady Growth {7.88%) 597% {0.35%)




Financial
Statements

Reserves policy
LCF holds the following types of reserves:

Endowment reserves comprise copital sums

donated under the restrictions that they are
ilobl

Designated reserves are funds set aside from

unrestricted reserves at the discretion of the Trustees.

During the year to 31 March 2019, Trustees
approved the designation of a £50,000 fund for
LCF’s digital investment programme to cornerstone
@ fundroising effort for the total iniliative. At 31

invested, and that the i return is
for expenditure in occordance with the donors’

sirategies for giving. Within the category of
4 b : dabi

March 2020, no funds had been spent, and
the batance remains ot £50,000, out of @ total
fesi d fund balance of £63,000 {2019:

are two i} P
d A b

and p 3
percentage of capital amounts of expenduble
endowment may be speni if the Trustees decide to

£56,000), the remaining sum relotes to LCF's
tangible fixed assels.

The i ! d reserves rep the

do so, though the overall end isil

for lasting and sustained impact. The capital

of permanent endowment may not be spent.
Endowment reserves at 31 March 2020 stood at
£19,597,000 {2019: £20,886,000), the decrease
of £1,28%,000 {u 6%) Is predominantly due to
investment losses at year-end and withdrawals for
grani-making.

Restricted reserves comprise funds available
for expenditure in occordance with the donors’
strotegies for giving. Donations are typically spent
over 1-2 Yeor periods, however LCF encourages
its donors to open multi-year funds, which in some
cases leads to the build-up of restricted reserves.

Restricted reserves at 31 March 2020 were
£3,695,000 {2019: £4,141,000). The decreose
of 11% is mainly due to the fiming of grant
programmes, with significant grant awards in year.

tangible fixed assets fund. Which reflects the net
book value of the leasehold improvements 1o the
rented offices of LCF, as well as any office or IT
equipmeni which LCF has copitalised in line with
its accounhing policy. The value of the assets at
31 March 2020 was £13,000 {2019: £6,000).
The designation is made in recognition of the fact
that these assets are essential to the day-to-day
running of the Charity and should therefore not be
idered realisable to meet ¢

Free reserves are the balance of LCF's
unrestricted reserves that have not been designated
for a porticular purpose and as such are freely
availoble to the Trustees for any of the charity’s
purposes. The free reserves held ot 31 Morch 2020
were £704,000 (2019: £695,000). The increase
reflects the operating surplus for the yeor.

Trustees review LCF's Reserves Policy and
reserves lavels annually os part of the plaaning
process. The level of reserves is one of the
factors laken into consideration in setting future
expenditure tevels. The Trustees have agreed o
policy where free reserves should be maintained
ot o level representing:

+ Six months of planned future unrestricted
™
P 9 staff costs),
net of six months forecast unrestricted income from
endowment funds;

« Three months of development stalf costs; and
- Two years of properly lease costs.

This leval is judged necesswry after
considering the following factors:

- The uncertainty of income, porticularly following
the COVID- 19 pandemic. A relatively smoll
proportion of LCF’s income can be guaronteed
beyond one year as few of our donors currently
commil to funding further ahead than one year;

- Free reserves of this level encble us 1o plon
for the longer term and lo utilise resources
more efficiently;

* Holding of endowment. LCF holds £19,597,000
of endowment funds, of which £4,210,000
are permanenily endowed; LCF's free reserves
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are intended to allow us to guorantee our
sustainability and ability to menage endowed
funds into the future;

« Holding of restricted funds. At any point LCF
typically holds between £2,000,000 and
£5,000,000 of restricted funds intended for grant-
making across o wide range of funds, the Reserves
Policy must ensure LCF has sufficient reserves
to fulfil the intentions of the donors in regard to
distributing the grant-making funds held;

- Plonning in the longer term. LCF operates o five-
year planning process in order to ollow @ long-
term strategy.

LCF’s fevel of free reserves as af 31 March 2020
wos £704,000. This amount is grecter than the
figure calculated under the Reserves Policy,
described above, which suggests a value of
£630,000 was needed at 31 March 2020.
However, the Trustees are comfortable with the
level of reserves held ot the current time, given the
continuing uncertainty over future income levels
and facing a year post-COVID- 19 pandemic.
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Pedlar’s Acre Trust

LCF took over the trusteeship of the charity Pedlor’s
Acre Trust from Lombeth Council in 2009; the ossets
of this trust comprise permanent endowment. LCF
opplied to the Charity Commission for the power

lo use a total return approach regarding the fund’s
invesiments and this power wos granted on 17
January 201.

The total return approach to investment allows tCF
to utilise some of the capitat growth of the fund for
current grant-making, instead of only being able to
use the investment income received. The power to
use a total return approach allows the Charity to
have an invesiment sirategy aimed at maximising
total seturn without needing to ensure a significant
part of the return is in the form of income rather than
capital growth.

The Trustees have o duty to maintain even-
hondedness in regard to supporting both currnt and
luture beneficiaries and will only use the power to
spend the copilal growth to the extent that the ability
to support future beneficiari judiced

will not be prej

Beaufoy Trust

LCF took over the trusteeship of the charity Beaufoy
Trust from Lambeth Council in July 2013; the assets
of this Irusi comprise permanent endowment. LCF
does not currently operate o total return approach
regording the fund's investments.

Endowment spending policy

LCF’s policy regardi pendable end ts is
to ollocate a set percentage of the value of each
fund at December each year for expenditure on
gronts and direct charitable expenditure in the
next financial year. The Trustees review this policy
every year and set the appropriale percentage to
be applied to the fund value as ot 31 December.
During 2019/20 the percentage used was 3.5%
{2018/19: 3.5%) for grant making plus the annual
contribution towards LCF's costs.

The expenditure of the investment return of any
permanent endowment where o totat return
approach has been agreed with the Charity
Commission, is set by LCF at 3.5% {2019: 3.5%) of
the value of the fund at December each year, plus
the annvat contribution towards LCF's costs. If the
Trustees judge that a higher or lower amount would
better fulfil the duty of being even-handed in the
trectmont of present und fulure beneficiares of the
fund, the amount may be voried in future decisions.
The Trustees expect to spend o total of 3.5% on
grant making in the coming year for the permanent
endowment fund ‘Pedlar’s Acre Trust” which has a
total return approach agreed.

For permanent endowments where no total! return
approach is agreed, only the income arising from
the fund may be spent.
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Executive remuneration

Remuneration policies

LCF had on average 18 full-time equivalent stakf
during 2019/20 {2018/19: 19). Salaries are

d and agreed fly by LCF's N
and R ion Committee, o Sub- ittee of
our Board of Trustees. Recommendations for annual
changes to existing team salaries are made to this
Committee by the CEOQ in lation with relevant
line monagers. The recommendation for the CEQ's
salory is made by the Chair to the Nominations
ond R ion Ci i In dinary
circumstances, there is the opportunity to increase the
pay of an individuol outside the formal annual review.

Salaries are set with reference to the salary band set for
each role and annual salary review considers foctors
including inflotion, individucl performance ond LCF's
financial position. Salary bands are openly stoted

in job adverfisemants. Bands are set using voluntary
sector benchmarking for the role, considering the skills
and experience required, the market value for similar
roles and LCF’s financial position, -

Our approach to pay

LCF employs people based on the specific skills,
knowledge, and behaviours that they bring to their
particular role and to the success of LCF as a whole.
We employ a flexible approach - depending on

the needs of the business and of individual roles at
any one fime, we may recruit at the top of a band or
towards the lower end 1o allow for emerging talent
and for scope to grow. We wanl to reward the LCF
team fairly for the jobs that they do, and we believe
thot our salaries and additional benefits, such os

o 10% contributory pension, holiday entitlemenl,
flexible working, volunteer days and employee
assistance scheme reflect this. LCF is o London Living

Wage accredited employer, meaning all our team and
contractors are poid at least the London Living Wage.
We are also o Living Wage accredited funder, meaning
we require the charities and community organisations
we fund 1o also pay the London Living Wage.

Remuneration of key
management personnel

The Trustees consider that they, together with the Charity's
SMT, comprise the key maonagement of the Charity

in chorge of directing and controlling, running, and
operating the Charity. :

The SMT was made up as follows during
the year 2019/20:

CEO, Director of Grants and Impact, Director of Finance
& Resources until August 19, and Director of Business
Develop and C i until Januory 20.

{18/2019: CEQ, Director of Programmes & Strategic
parinerships until June 18, Interim Director of Programmes
June to September 18, Director of Grants and Impact
from October 18, Director of Finance and Resources, and
Director of Business Develop and C ications)
The total benefits including employer pension contributions
ol the employed SMT was £261,359 (18/2019: £314,143).

The Trustees are not remunerated. Directly incurred
expenses for travel and subsistence relating to their role as
trustees are reimbursed if claimed. No cloims were made
in 2020 {2019:0).

Pay ratio

The ratio of our highest solary rate to our median salary

during 2019/20 wos 2.35:1 (2019: 2.25:1).
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Future plans for 2020-21

As we publish this Annucl Report, we face

! ding of the i diate and long-term impact
on london'’s communities of COVID-19. Our Report
in 2021 /22 will look drastically ditferent. Foced with
so much uncertainty, we founched into our COVID-19
response with a series of sirategic gronl-making
principles of how best LCF could serve its heartlond
of grossroots, communities most in need and help
donors navigate the giving landscape. 2020/21 will
see s report against those principles.

1. Collaboration for recovery

The grossroots moved London ot o time of globol
crisis. Going forward LCF wilt be focusing —
olongside other London funders ~ on how best

we can collectively support the charitable sector

to recover from the COVID- 19 crisis. Returning to
individual silos of grant making going forward - after
the scale of collaboration even in the early weeks

of lockdown, would be detrimental for the charities
seeking support. Collaboration may come in different
forms ~ impact driven, technical operations, insights
or new partnerships - and LCF focus on the value it
can bring for donors and grossioots London.

" The crisis brought partners new and re-acquainted

to LCF. Next year will also focus on retaining these
donor partnerships with compelling reasons to give
post COVID-19.

2. Equity, Equality, Diversity,
and Inclusion:

As part of its ongoing commitment to equity, equality,
diversity and inclusion, LCF is enhencing its reporting
and transparency on people in the Charity. Although
we are not legally required to report against diversity,
we are committed to being transparent.

This work forms part of a wider programme at LCF
on equity, equality, diversity and inclusion {EDI)

hing across the g our
governance, people, cullure, grant making ond
donor engagement. At the time of writing this report,
LCF had diversified its Board of Trustees following
a recruilment drive and this will be represented in
next year's Annual Report alongside wider (EDI)
developments. LCF is also working with its peer

ity dations diversity and inclusion as part

ofits membership of the UKCF network.

About the EDI Survey:
The following data table is taken from an anonymous
diversity survey of Trustees and Teom members ot LCF.

Responses to the survey were not mandatory, were
self-reported and each question included an option
of ‘Prefer not to Say". This means people did not need
to complete the survey and could leave some or all
sections unanswered.

LCF is o small Team and Board and theretare
o .

g g and rep g dalo y

and respectively is different compared o a large

organisation. We intend to build on this over time and

recognise there is no one solulion to reporing.

For the Financial Year 19/20 we do not have all
diversity data for team members who departed in
year. This means our data is incomplete.

1n this instance we have used the data responses

bmitted by those employees who ded to the
survey, carried out in November 2020, ond have
more than 12 months’ service with the Charity. A total
of 13 Team members who were with the Charity os at
31 March 2020 remained employed by the Charity
at the time this first survey was undertaken. Of those,
10 chose to respond and their data has been used to
produce the following data tables.

This year we are reporling on o small number of
diversity areas extracted from the survey but expect to
expand the data reported over time.

Respondents were given a range of options under
each question to reflect full diversity across each area
- the table below is o summary of those category
options and results,

LCF Board of Trustees

How do you describe your ethnicity:
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A total of 77% of Team members that could respond
did so. Equally 88% of Trustees completed the survey
with their choices. Data below represents their
responses anly.

LCF Team

How do you describe your ethnicity:

Asian/ Asian Brilish: 23% Asian/ Asian British: 0%
Other ethnicilies listed: 0% Other ethnicities listed: 0%
White: 63% White: 77%
Did not respond: 13% Did not respond: 23%
How do you define your gender identity? How do you define your gender identity?
female: 25% Female: 54%
Male: 63% Male: 23%
Of other gender identities listed: 0% Of other gender identilies listed: 0%
Did not respond: 13% Did not respond: 23%

Which of the following options best describes |
how you think of your sexual orientation?

Gay or Lesbian: 13%
Helerosexual or straight: 75%
Of other sexual orientations listed: 0%
Prefer not to say: 0%
Did not respond: 13%

Which of the following options best describes
how you think of your sexual erientation?

Gay or Lesbian: 15%
Heterosexual or straight: 54%
Of other sexual orientations listed: 0%
Prefer not to soy: 8%
Did not respond: 23%

Do you consider yourself to live with
a disability?

Do you consider yourself fo live with
a disability?

No: 88%
Yes: 0%
Prefer not to say: 0%
Did not respond: 13%
What is your Age?

25-29: 0% 50-54: 25%
30-34: 0% 55.59: 13%
35-39: 0% 65+: 25%
40-45: 0% Did not respond: 13%

45-49: 25%

No: 54%
Yes: 8%
Prefer not to say: 15%
Did not respond: 23%
What is your Age?

25.29: 15% | 50-54: 15%
30-34: 8% 55-59: 0%
35-39: 23% | 65+ 0%
40-45: 0% Did not respond: 23%

45-49: 15%
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3. Data and digital
development

LCF demonstrated - even in the early days of
COVID-19 lockdown - the scale of impact we con
achieve working virtually. Next yeor we will build
on these digitat achievemenls and insights, both to
support development of our internal operations,
performance, and insights on our impact and
importantly, to also pass on lime efficiencies ond
pacity-building to and g
We recognise the breadth ond value of the data
held by LCF on London’s giving and grassroots
aclion across this great city. We hold a privileged
position on the intelligence and insights we
possess. Aligned with our commitment to
collaboration, we will build and share this dota
to help inform donor engogement, philanthropy
across the city ond gront-making.

4. Investing in talent

As we publish this report, LCF is still working
remotely with no definitive plans to return to
permanenl office working. Investing in our teams
will also include how we suppori, develop, and
enable them to move towards a new way of
working, supporting their wellbeing, professional
development and building on the collective impoct
during COVID-19. Included in this work is specific
investment in LCF’s middle management team as the
future leaders.

Our approach
to fundraising

LCF generates its income by working in partnership
with individual philanthropists, trusts, corp ond
sociol partners, ond local or central government.
An extremely small portion of the Charity’s income
comes from donations from members of the public.
This money is substantially made vp of d

to flagship initiatives, for example the Evening
Standard Dispossessed Fund, or through fundraising
evenls like the London Marathon.

Only LCF's team and Trustees are involved in
fundroising for the charity {aside from individuals
raising donations on our behalt through fundraising
events). We do not use any third-party professional
fund 5 Of ies. We are regi d with,
and pay the voluntary levy to, the Fundraising
Regulotor and abide by its Cade of Conduct. There
were no plai gording our fundraisi

g
proctices during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Principal risks
and uncertainties

The Trustees consider the major risks to which LCF is
exposed by conducting a risk review as part of the

business plonning process ond the maintenance

d 11

2. Reputation in supporting Grossroots
London: Without o responsive, transporent,
and agile grant-moking, LCF risks being o

of arisk register which is updated ot least y.
Risk is also considered ot the Trustees’ quarterly
meetings and by relevant sub-committees, where
specific risks require consideration. The Trustees are
satisfied that procedures are in place to manage
or mitigote the impact of the significant risks they
have identified.

d

hind not an encbler to London's grassrools
sector facing unprecedented challenges and -
competition for funding. We may not be able

to fund or even save the organisations we may
have previously funded but our reputation - both
with applicants and donors — is criticol. We will
mitigote this through effective monitoring of data
on grant making, clear communications and
with the sector and donors.

The risk tegister of LCF is updated and

annually as part of the business planning process

with aclive risk management in ploce across six

areas: finance and investment, staffing, governance,

gront-making, systems ond operations ond external
! Itis also reviewed g ly by the SMT.

The main risks identified in 2020/2)are
shown below, along with the ways the risks are
being mitigated:

1. Shortfall of income against costs: The
result of this would be an erosion of reserves,
reduced sustainability, and a contraction of
the organisation. Cost management remains
a key focus alongside revenue generation for
LCF. Staffing remains the single largest cost
and this is regularly reviewed by the SMT
against fund management and new business

! the latter d tightly through
qualified pipeline analysis. However, as a
funder dependent on the generosity of London's

dividual and corp philanthropy and
its public sector bodies, we face much of the
uncertainty of other frontline charities. We have
strengthened reserves in 19/20 and seek to
manage costs through angoing collaboration,
effective cost manogement and pipeline analysis
on future income.

©

Developing o professional, high
performing and knowledgeable team:
LCF's team is our biggest assel. Ensuring the
leam can successfully transition to o new way
of working post COVID-19 and thet we can
support their development and commitment
lo LCF’s mission is a criticol part of our own
recovery from the pandemic

&

. Building on digital ochievements:
Capitalising on the odv we hove made
virtually is o key part of cost monagement moving
forward. Ensuring we can progress efficiencies
will aid our aperations, cullure, and engagement
with all siakeholders. Designated funds held on
balance, coupled with advancements made, are
key to mitigating the risks.
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Statement of Trustees’
responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also directors of The London

time the financial position of the charily and enable them
to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for

C ity Foundation for the purp of company
law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report
and Financial $ in d with applicabl o]

low and United Kingdom Accounting Stondards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company low requires the Trustees to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year which give o Irve and
fair view of the state of offairs of the Charity and of the
income and expenditure of the Charity for that period.

In preparing these Financial Statements, the
Trustees are required to:

« select suitable accounling policies and then opply
them consistently;

ding the assets of the Charily and hence for taking
ble steps for the p ond detection of froud

and other irregularities.

Each of the Trustees confirms that:

« so far as the Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Chority‘s ouditor is unaware; and

« the Trustee has taken oll the steps that ought to have
been taken os o Trustee in order to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish thot the
Charity’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in

« observe the methods and principles in A ing and
Reporting by Charifies: Statement of Recommended
Praclice applicable to charifies preparing the accounts
in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland
{FRS 102);

« moke judg ond esti that are
ond prudent;

+ state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material
dep Jisclosed and explained in the fi ial
statements; and

+ prepore the Financiol Statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriote to presume that the
Charity will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

accord with the p aof 5418 of the C
Act 2006.

The Trustees are respansible for the maintenance uid
integrity of financial information included on the Charity’s
website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparotion and di ination of Financia! §

moy differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Trustees’ Reporl, incorporating a strategic report,

was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, in their
capacity os the choritable company directors, and signed
on the Board's behalf by:

Eovee A7

Russell Prior
Chair
Dated | February 2021
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Independent Auditor’s
Report to the members

of The London
Community Foundation

Opinion

We have audited the Financiol Stotements of The

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin occordance with

London C ity Fo dation (the “choritabl

dards on Auditing (UK} {ISAs

company’ year ended 31 March 2020} which
comprise the statement of financial aclivities, the
balance sheel, the statement of cash flows, and
the notes to the Financial Statements including
the principal accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in
their preporation is applicable low and United
Kingdaem Accounting Standuids, Including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting
Standard aopplicable in the UK and Republic of
treland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice}.

In our opinion, the Financial Statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the
charitable company s affairs as ot 31 March
2020 ond of its income and expenditure for the
year then ended;

- have been properly prepored in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Praclice; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

{UK}} and applicable low. Our responsibil
under those standords are further described in the
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial
Statements section of our repor. We are independent
of the charitabl pany in ! with the
ethical requirements thot are relevant to our oudit

of the financial statements in the UK. including the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we hove fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to
going concern

We hove nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the 1SAs {UK)
require us o report to you were:

« the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the Financial
Statements is not appropriate; or
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- the Trustees have not disclosed in the Financial
Statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significont doubt about the charitable
company s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the Financial
Statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other

ink ion. The other inf i prises the
information included in the annual report and
Financiol Statements, other than the Financiol
Stotements and our Auditor’s Report thereon. Our
opinion on the Financial Statements does nol cover
the other information and, except 1o the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our Report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

tn connection with our oudit of the Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other inf ion is ially i i

with the Financial Stalements or our knowledge
obtoined in the oudit or otherwise appears to be
malerially misstated. If we identify such material
i i ies or app materiol

we are required to determine whether there is o
moterial misstatement in the Financial Statements
or a material mi of the other inf

Opinions on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the conrse of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees’ Report
including the strategic report for the financiol year
for which the Financial Statements are prepared is
consistent with the Financial Statements; and

« the Trustees’ Report including the strategic report
hos been p din dance wilh licab!

P PP

legal requirements.

Matters on which we are
required to report by
exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding

of the charitabl, pany and its envi

obtained in the course of the oudit, we have not
identified moterial misstatements in the Trustees’
report including the strategic report. We have
nothing to report in respect of the following matters
in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that
facl. We have nothing to report in this regard.

d ing records have not been kept,

q
or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches nol visited by vus; or

- the Financial Statements are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns; or

= certain discl of Trustees’
specified by low are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

- the Trustees were not enfitled to prepare the
fi ial in accord with the small
companies’ regime and toke advantage of the
small panies’ ptions in preporing the
Teustees’ Report and from the requirement to
prepare a strategic reporl.

« the information given in the Trustees’ Report
including the sirategic report for the financiol yeor
for which the Finoncial Statements are prepared is
consistent with the Financial Statements; and

+ the Trustees’ Report including the strategic report
has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legol requirements,

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the stotement of Trustees’
responsibililies, the Trustees are responsible for

the preparation of the Financial Statements and

for being satisfied thot they give o true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Trustees

d ine is y to enable the preparati

of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are

responsible for assessing the charitable company’s
ability o confinue os a going concern, disclosing,
os applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern bosis of accounting unless

Trustees’ Annual Report
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the Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable
company or o cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements os o whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is o
high level of assurance but is nol a guarantee that
an audil conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK)
will alwoys detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstolements can arise from fraud or efror
and are idered material if, individually or in the

ggregate, they could bly be expected to
influence the econamic decisions of users token on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilifies for the
audit of the Financial Statements is located on the
Financicl Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.
org.uk/oudi ponsibilities. This descripfi
forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Use of our Report

This Report is made solely to the charitable
company's members, as o body, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the charitable company’s
members those malters we are required lo state

to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,

we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the chariloble compeny and the
charitable company’s members as a body, for our
oudit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

%«zzc&e‘tﬁ‘l_t_/

Catherine Biscoe
{Senior Statutary Auditor}

For and on behalf of Buzzocott LLP,
Statutory Auditor

130 Wood Street

London EC2V 6DL

Dated: 19/02/2021
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Statement of Financial

Activities for the year
to 31 March 2020

INates i Unrestricted . Restricred || E
. ; funds | i

. J 000/
Income and endowments from:

Donations and

legacies 20 914 7,906 146| 8,966| 8.455
Investments 2b 281 422 58 761 747
Other troding

octivities 2c -4 - - 69 53
Total income 1,264 8,328 204| 9.796| 9,255
Expenditure on:

Raising funds 30_| 467 14] 122] 03[ 567
Charitable octivities:

Grant

progiamme 3b 787 8,979 -| 9.766| 8,492
Community

development 3c - 36 - 36 64
Tote) 1,234 9,029 122|10403| 9,123

Net (expenditure) income
before investmens gains
and losses 10 {701y 82| (s09)| 132
Net (losses] /
goins on
investments 9 (71 - {1,103} (1.110) 1,272
Net
(expenditure)
/ income 3 {701) (1,021)](1,719) 1,404
Teonsfer In /
(out] between
funds 14,15 13 255 (268 - .
Net
movement in
funds 16 (446) (1,289)] (1,719) 1,404
Reconciliation of funds:
Total ot
01 Aprif 2019 751 4,141 20,886 25,778
Total at 31 .
March 2020 12 767 3,695 19,5971 24,059
All of the octivities of The London C ity Foundation derive from i i
These are no recognised gains ond losses other than those shown above.
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Income and expenditure

account for the year
ended 31 March 2020

i 2020 2009

£000!  £000

Toto! income of ing operotions 9,650 9,057
Total expenditure of continving of i (10405} | (9,123
Net (expenditure} for the year before transfers and {755) 66)
i asset disposal:

Tronslers from endowment funds 332 867
Reolised {'0sses) / gains on disposal of fixed asset i (24) 4
Net (expenditure) / i {347) 805

Tota! income comprises €1,264k {2019: £1,117X) of unsestricted funds, £8,328k (2019:
£7,877%) of resiricted funds and £58k [2019: £63k) of endowment funds.

Received in the year, but excluded from income, are new endowments of €146k (2019:
£198k).

Detailed analysis of the expenditure is provided in the Statement of Financicl Activities.

Net diture before i asset disposals and transfers from the endowment funds for
the year is £755k (2019: £66k).

This comprises of net unrestricted income of £10k {2019: £{70K) nes expenditure), net
restricted expenditure of £701k {2019: £81%) und ne1 endowment expenditure of £64k
{2019: £77X).

Note thot this exclud d income from donations and legacies as this is aot
considered to be continued operations.

A transfer to income funds is made, ir. line with the charity’s total return and expendable
endowment policies, so thot funds may be ded.

The summary income and expenditure is derived from the Statement of Financial Activities
which, together with the notes to the Accounts on poges 49 to 87, provides full information on

the movements during the yeor on ol funds of the charitable company.
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Balance sheet
as at March 2020

“Notes 1|  Total'  Total
) 20201 2019
4 £000; £000

Fixed assots:

Tongiblo ossets 8 1 &
| Investments 9 20,78¢ 21,880
[Total 20,799| 21,886
Current assets:

Debtors 10 385 1,765
| Cash ot bank and in hand 5,193 4.335

Total 3,780 6.100
| Croditors: amounts folling duo within one ycar 1] {2,520) | (2.208);

Not curront assots: 3.260 3.892
| Not assots 24,039] 25,778
| Capital funds:

Expendable endowment hunds 14 15,387 16,336

Petmanent endowmen funds 14 4,210 4,550
Total 19,597| 20,886

Rovenuo funds:

Rostrictod funds [ 15 T 3695] 4141

Unrostrictod funds:

Desi d hunds 16 63 56
General funds 704 695
Tota! funds 24,059) 25,778

The Financial Stalements were approved by the Board of Trustees on: | February 2021

Russell Prios Timothy Ingram
Chair of Trustoos Chair of Audit, Risk & Investmont Committeo
Company number: 4383269

Charity Number: 1091263
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Statement of cash
flows for the year

ended 31 March 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating I I |

activifies A 104 (682}

Coash Aow from investing octivitios:

tnterest received 18 174

income received 743 730

Purchase of property, plaat and equipment 3} (4)

Purchase of investments (10,798) | 243)

Proceads from the disposal of investments 10,650 78

Not cash provided by investing acti 600 578

Cash flow from financing activitios:

Roceipt of endowment 146 198

Net cash provided by investing activities 138 198

Change in cash and cash equivolents in yeor 850 94

Cosh and cosh equivalents at 01 April 2019 4,348 4251
| Cash and cosh equivalents at 31 Morch 2020 5.195[ 4,348

Notos to the staterent of cash ow for the yeor e March 2020

Note A: Not {expendituro) / income for the year

{as per tho statomant of financial activities) {1,863 1,206

Adjustments for:

Nof losses / {gainy] on investmenls 1,110} [1,272]

Depreciation charge [-] 2
| Dividends and interest iom investments (761) [747)
| Fees daducted from invastments 122 164

Docroose / {incronsa) in debsars 1,180 265)

Incsoase in ¢reditors 312 212

Not cash provided by / (used in) operating

activities 104 682)

Net B: Anolysis of cosh and cash equivalents:

Cash ot bank and in hand 3.19 4,335
Cash held by investment manager for reinvestment 0
Total 3,19 4,343

Notes to the

1. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Financiol Statements of the Charity, which is
o public benefit entity under FR$102, have been
prepared under the historical cost ion, o3

dified by the inclusion of i at market value,
in accordance with the Financiol Reporting Standard
application in the UK and Ireland (FRS 102} (Charities
SORP {FRS 102)) and the Charities Act 2011,

The Financiat Statements have been prepared for
the yeor ended 31 March 2020 with comparative
information in respect to the year ended 31 March 2019,

Going concern

Alter reviewing the Charity's forecosts and
projections, the Trustees hove a reasonable
expectation that the Charity hos adequate resources
to continue in operational existance for the
foreseeable future. The Charity therefore continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
Financial Statements.

Accounts

The following specific policies are applied
to particular categories of income:

Donations and Legacies: These amounis
are included in the SOFA in the year that they
are receivable.

Income orising from grants and similar controcts
specifically for the provision of granls, activities or
services which are provided os part of the charitabl,
activities of the charity. Grants to cover administrotion
cosls are shown as charitable activities within the
unrestricted fund.

Where income is received during the year in respect
of future periods, the amount of the income which
relates to future periods is deferred and included
within creditors.

Where enfitlement occurs before income is received,
the income is accrued.

Investments: Investment income ond interest are
d when entitl or receipt is established

Other trading activities: Income is recognised in
full for activilies undertaken during the year.

Accounting policies Expenditure

The Financiat have been prepared underthe  Expenditure is recognised when there is o legal or
historic cost ¢ ion, os modified by the revall constructive obligation committing the Charity to that
of i L in Jance with the S| of diture, it is probable thot setth will be

Recommended Practice (SORP} "Accounting and
Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2018, Financial
Reporting Standord 102 and Companies Act 2006.
The particulor accounting policies adopted by the
Boord of Trustees are described:

required, and the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliobly.

| ble VAT is included within the exp
items to which it relates.

Expenditure comprises direct costs and support costs.

Income All expenses, including support costs, are allocated

Income is recognised in the stalement of finencial or apportioned to the applicable expenditure

activities (SOFA) when there is entitl probability di Expenditure is classified under the
fflows g N

of receipt and the income can be d with g activity heading

sufficient accuracy.
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» Cost of raising funds
All expenditure associated with raising funds
for the Charily. Including staff costs associated
with fundraising and the fees poyable to the
investment manager.

+ Charitable activities
All costs incurred towards achieving LCF's
charitable objectives.

Grant expendilure is recognised in the year of
award and when communicated 1o recipient in line

with the SORP,

Direct costs, including directly altributable
salaries, are allocoted on an actual basis to each
expenditure heading.

Support costs are cost incurred which ore not
directly attributable to our choritable acrivities, but
which are vital to carry out the primary purposes
of the Charity. These include costs such as finance,
human premi ications and
information systems,

G e costs comprise the cosls involving, the
public accountability of the charity pli

Fund accounting

General funds are unrestricted funds which

are available for use, at the discretion of the Board

of Trustees, in furtherance of the general objectives

of the Charity and which have not been designated
for particular purposes.

Desig d funds compri: icted funds
that have been set aside by the Boord of Trustees
for particular purposes.

The aim and use of each designated fund are set out
in the annual report of the Board of Trustees and the
notes to the financial statements. The Board of Trustees
periodically reviews the level of designated funds to
ensure that they are adequale to suppori the purpose
for which they were set up, and any surplus or deficit
is transferred to or from general funds.

Restricted funds ore funds which are to be used
in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by
donors, or which have been raised by the Charity

for particular putp The costs of administrating

such funds are charged against the specific fund.

statutory responsibility, and good practice. Support
costs (including governance costs) are allocated

to the expenditure activity headings based on
employee lime spent working in each areo.

Pensions

LCF contributes to o defined contribution scheme in
. the UK.

Pension costs for the defined coniribution scheme
are charged to the accounts on an accrual basis in
the period in which they occur.

End funds which are permanent,
represent amounts for which the capilal must be
retained and invested.

Income arising on these funds may be
spent on the charitable objectives of LCF and in line
with restrictions placed on each fund.

Expendable endowments must be invested to
produce income. Depending on the conditions
attached to the endowment, it may be possible lo
convert all or port of it into an income fund, which
can be spent.

Permanent endowment funds {with total
return approach) require all income, gains and

losses are taken to the part of the fund representing
accumulated unapplied returns in the first instance.

An omounl reflecting the deemed i

return each year is calculated using the Chority’s
d pending policy and is ferred

1o income funds to be applied within the terms of

these funds.

Permanent endowment funds (withou! total
return approach) only the income generoted from
the endowmenl is available to be applied towards
charitable expenditure.

Under the terms on which the endowment funds
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Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recorded at cost. The
threshold for capitalisation is £1,000, with a usefu!
economic life exceeding one year.

Depreciation is charged on a siraight-line basis
over their useful lives which are estimated to be:

were given lo the Charity, an amount rep ing
the cost to LCF of administrating the fund is
apportioned to unrestricted funds from investment
income arising in the year.

Significant accounting
estimates and judgments

The preparotion of the Financial Stotements requires
o .

and ptions to be
made thot affect the reported volues of assels,
ond exp The nature

of esfimotion and judgement means tha! actual
outcome could differ from expectation.

The estimate of useful economic life of tangible
assets vsed to determine annual depreciation
The basis on which support costs have been

Il d across expenditure activity headi
The assumplion adopted in determining the
value of any designation of unrestricted funds;
and
¢ The rationale in d

level of dilapid:

the leosed premises.

g an approp!
provision ioted with

L hold imp Over the ining life
of the lease

Office equipment Five years - 20%

IT equipment Three years - 33.3%

Investments

Investments are a form of basic financial instruments
and are initially recognised at transaction volue
and subsequently measured at fair volue os at the
balance sheet date using the closing market bid
price.

The stotement of finoncial octivities includes the net
unrealised gains and losses arising on revaluation
and realised gains and losses arising from disposals
throughout the year.

Realised goins and losses are calculated on the
diff t sole p ds and the opening
carrying value or the purchase value if acquired in
the financiol year.

Unredalised gains and losses are caleulated as the
difference between the fair value at the year end
and the opening carrying value or purchose volue
if acquired in the financial year.




Debtors

Trade and other debtors ore recognised at the

I amount. Prepay are valved
at the amount prepaid net of ony trade
discounts due.

Creditors and provisions

Creditors and provisions are recognised where
the Chority hos o present obligation resulting
from a past evenl that will probably result in the
teansfer of funds to o third party and the amount
due to setile the obligation can be mecsured or
estimated reliably.

Creditors and provisions are normally recognised
al their settl omount alter ollowing for ony
trade discounts due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cosh equi include ensh-in-hand,;
cash held in current occounts with UK banks ond
on deposit with CCLA,

Value Added Tax

As part of LCF activities is clossified as exempt or
non-business octivities for the purposes of VAT, il
is unable to reclaim ail the VAT that it suffers on
its operating costs. Expenditure in these Finoncial
Statements is therefore shown inclusive of VAT
paid and not recloimable.

Operating lease

Rents payable under operating leases ore

hargeable to the of fi ial activilies
on a straight-line bosis over the fease term.
Benelits received os a lease incentive are credited
to the statement of finoncial aclivities, to reduce
the lease expense on a siraighi-line basis over the
remaining leose term.

LCF has taken advantage of the exemption in
respect to lease incentives on leases in existence
at the date of Ironsition to FRS 102 {01 April
2014) and continue to credit the lease incentives
to the statement of financial activities over the
period from the rent review date to the end of the
leose term.

2 Income

i

Unrestricted i
funds

€000 £000
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-

Restricted !
funds|
i

{
i

Endowmem”
funds||

. £o00]

20 Income from d and legacios

Tsusis and

foundations 221 3,455 ] 3.682| 2625
Coiporotes 294 1,921 140 2,355) 2,380
1ocol public

authorities 29 129 - 158 768
Individuals 236 634 - 870 529
Noationa! publie

authorities 134 1,767 - 1,901 2,153
Total 914 7.906 146 8.966| 8455
2b Income from investments

Interest receivable 18 - - 18 17
! income 263 422 58 743 730
Total 28) 422 58 761 747
2¢ Income from other trading activities

Rentol income 69 | Jee]  sa
Total | 9] | -l ee] 33

Unrestricted |

r Rasm‘:red}; Endowmen'? i
funds;

rooo'!
i

funds:
£000 “1

2020 Yotal

incoma 1,264 8,328 204| 9.796

2019 Tetal

income 117 7,877 261 9,255
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3 Expenditure

Total

3o Expenditure on raising funds ::::";;::m
Investment management costs: 2019 Totol
Stoff costs {note | Expenditure 1,187 7,796 140 9,123
D) 7 . . 7 4
Other direct costs 2 - 122 124 141
Allocated support
costs [note 4) 5 - . S 2

" 3 it .
Cost of raising donations and legacies a4 A"OIYSIS of support costs
Staff cosis (nata
) 239 - . 239 243 2020,
Other direct costs 29 14 . 43 28 2000 ::;:
Allocated support
costs [noto 4) V74 . . 174 126 | Suppont stoff costs [note &) 138 118
Cost of generating rental income: Professional fees 90 84
Stolf costs (note Premises costs 153 125
() 4 - - 4 8 Office and other costs 28 19
Other direct costs 4 - - q 14 Depreciation ] 20
Allocated support 1T costs 24 24
costs [note 4) 3 = - 3 ! G costs {note 5) 72 57
Total as67 14 122 603 S67 Total 11 aa7
3b Expenditure on charitablo @ ties: grant programme . Attributed to:
G":;"’ poyoble - 8.905 - 8,903 7,696 " | Expenditure on raising funds (note 3a):
Staff costs [note 452 N ; as2 446 Investmen] mancgement S 2
Other direct costs o 74 A 8ol . a7 Cost of caising donations and legocies 174 126
‘Allocoted support Cost of generating rental income 3 1
costs [note 4) 329 - - 329 303 Expenditure on charitable activities:
Total 787 8,979 - 9.766| 8.492 Grant programme [nate 3b) 329 303
3¢ Expenditure on charitoble activities: community dovet | Community development {note 3c] - 15
Stoff costs (note Total E1) 447
(] - e s b 24 Suppost costs are allocoted to expenditute on roising funds and charitable activities based on
Other direct costs . 36 . 36 25 employes lime aflocated to each area.
Allocated support
cosls [note 4) - . - . 15
Total . 36 - 36 64
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5 Governance costs

22 employces participated in the charity's stokeholder pension scheme, inclusive cf starters
and leavers (2019: 24).

Staff costs {direct) 55 42 Key management personnel

y N The Charity iders its koy Q) P { comprises the hrustees and senior
External cuditor’s 13 12 manogement team.
Legol and professional fees ) 3 The senior management team was made up as lollows during the year:
Total 72 57 CEO, Disector of Grants and Impact, Direcior of Finance & Resources until August 19, and
Director of Business devek ond ications until Janvary 20.
(2019: CEO, Director of Prog; & Strotegic pr hips until June 18, Interim Director

. of Programmes June to September 18, Director of Grants and tmpaci from October 18,
6 Staff costs and renumeration of key Director of Fingnce & Resources, ond Director of Business Development and Communications), |
management personnel The total benelits includi \ pension ibutions of the employed senior
monogemen) team were £261,359 (2019: £314,143),

The Trustees are not temunerated. Directly incurred expenses for ravel and subsistence

N . ' i relating to their role as husiee are reimbursed if cloimed.
| Salaries and woges 683 725 No diims werg mads in 2020 [2019:0).
Sociol security costs 63 76
Employer pension ibuti 34 63
Temporary staff costs 90 12
Redundancy costy 3 S
Total 893 881 . .
The averoge number of employees during the year was: 7 Net (expend"ure)/_'n“,me
Employees 2020 FTE| 2019 FTE 2020 2019
Number Number
Grant delivery ond community development 13 12 13 12
Fundroising 3 5 a 5 This is stated ofter charging:
| Suppost 2 2 2 2 Staff costs {note 6} 893 881
Total 18| 19 19 19 Auditor’s remuneration {excluding VAT):
The number of staff whose emoluments were greater than £60,000 are: Statutory oudit services " "
£60.001 - £70,000 1 1 Othes services - 5
£70,000- £80,000 - i Deprecigtion 6 19
£80,001 - £90,000 L) - Rentols under operoting leases: property s 94
Total 2 2 Total 1,027 1.000
Emoluments is token to mean actual payments due inyear for hours worked ond is therefore
not a fulltime equivalent rate, but an actual rate reflecting partiime hours as well a3
employment for less than o hultyear.
The employees whose salary banding is disclosed above also occrved employer pension
contribulions of £14,796 {2019: £15,046].




Leaschold! ¢ Furniture, IT, 1
|mprovomems i Office If
£000 equipmen il
i £000 ;v‘
Cost:
As o1 01 Apiil 2019 107 56 163
Additions 13 13
As ot 31 March 2020 107 69 176
Depreciation:
As a1 01 April 2019 104 53 157
Charge for the year | S 6
As at 31 March 2020 105 58 163
Net Book Value as at 31
March 2020 2 n 13
Net Book Value os ot 31 Morch
2019 2 4 6
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9 Fixed asset investments

90 Invostments at markot valuo

2020
£000/!

i

2009
£000'

Market value of listed investments a1 Q1 April 2019 21,870 20,597
Additiens a1 cost 10,798 243
| Disposa! proceed: (10.630) (78]
Realised (losses) / gains on disposal (249) 4

Fees deducted by the i directly from the fund

{note 3a) (122) {164}
Unreolised (losses) / gains {1,086) 1,268
Market volue of listed investments at 31 March 2020 20,786 21,870
Cash hold by invostment managers 10
Total Market valuo of listod invostments ot 31 March

2020 20,786| 21,880
9b Inves! at historical cost

Markot valuo at 31 Moarch 2020 20,786 21,870
Accumulated gains brought forward (7.982)] (6.714)
Unieatised losses / (gains) for the yeor 1,086 {1.268)
Unreclised gain in respect to di ds in the year 2,863 23
Historical cost at 31 March 2020 16,753 13.911
| 9¢ Investmonts dispasition

Cash and seit pending - 10
Common Invostment Funds: Alpha CIF for Endowments [Income

Units) . 10,631
Common Investment Funds: COIF Charities | Ffund 20,689 11,138
Common Investment Funds: COIF Ethicol Investment Fund 97 101
Total market vatue of listed invostments ot 31 March

2020 20,786 21,880
Dunng the ycor andcd 31 March 2020, ICF lidated its i tfolio, to be

purchases in tho COIF Charities I Fund.

, being CCLA. It disposed of ifs units in tho Alpho CIF
for Endowment Fund held by Sarasin 3 Portners, ond used the soles proceeds 1o make
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10 Debtors 12 Analysis of net assets between funds
. Unrestricted "' Dosignated . Restrictad ) Endowmnnlg‘ 2020
v : funds ; funds ; funds funds £000,
i 0 : "
Trad dobiors o T )
Prepoymerts 53 4 :un :;e: os ot 31 March 2020
resa 2
Accrued income 8s 405 I_:y:'bla—"J
i
Total 585 1,765 fixed ossets - i3 - - 13 []
Fixed osset
invesimenty 251 - 938 19,597 20.786 | 21,880
Current
. . g s assets — cosh 442 50 4,703 -] _5,195| 4,335
11 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year Conom
: i assels -
202 debiors 164 - 421 -| sas| 1765
- Creditors:
Gronts payable 2,351 2,021 emounts
folling due
Other creditors 27 66 within one
Accruals 99 10 year [153) - (2.367) -112,320) (2,208))
Deforeed incom a 0 Total 704 63 3,98 19,307] 24,059 | 25,778
e = 3 The restricted funds represented by fixed asset investmenis are mode up of o lew endowment funds
Total 2,520 2,208 where LCF’s end ding policy hos determined the portion of the capital gain en those funds
on dof di which should be spen:, but the investment assets will not be drawn down until spending plans are
during tho yoor was as follows: ) finalised.
' The totol unreclised gains as at 31 March 2020 i on luation in respect o
Bula_nco brought forward at 1 listed investnents and ore os follows:
April 2019 . n 7 Total unroalised gains included above:
Amouats released to income {3) 4] On figted investments [_4033] 7959
Cash +vod to bo deferred N Reconciliotion of movements in unreatised gains:
0sh seceived o bo defers a3 Unteolised gains o3 ot O1 April 2019 7959] 6,692
Balance carried forward ot 31 Less disposals in year (2.840 {1
March 2020 a3 n Sub-total LA 6,69
. n e B .. Add net losses) / gains arising on revluation orising inyeas {1.086 1,268
Dele.ued income velole.s to funding where the agreement specifies some of the income is in Total unroalised gains os ot 31 March 2020 2033 7.95
relation to o future period. LTefe unregtiec 9
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13 Obligations under operating leases

i
1
As ot 31 March 2020, the Charity had total lutize minimum lease payments under noncancellable
operating leases for office sant as follows:
Within one year 126 126 Brenine,
Alter one but within two years 126 126 Dispossessed
Abter two but within five yoers 168 378 Fund 3,365 . {19) 138} (73] 3.018§ 3,363
Total 420 630 Lambeth
Cowmunity
Fund 224 . U] 13} 16} 218|224
Peckham
Fund 152 . U] (3 {4 14| 152
RollyRoyce
14 Endowment funds Fund 35 - o 1) 3) 3 35
Ruth's Fund 132 . 0! o) 3) 125 132
Victorio
Foundation
Fund 37s . (2 164 129) 33g| 375
‘Wandsworth
Educatiorol
. Fund 131 . U] U] o) nel 131
LCF holds both expendable and p 4 funds, Marry of LCF's endowrment funds hove Wourm
benefited from masch funding In addition 1o donations made 1o funds, received from the goverament 5‘3'"""”” o . 19
schemes Grassroots Grants {20082011) and Communiy First [2012:2015}. A selection of the funds, ore 395 - 6] ) BUL 333 3
listed below along with totols for soch scheme. Other
N Grassroots
?%”‘“"’m" Grassroots Grants Funds: Gronts Fnds | 1,636 . (19) 13 (ool 18] 163
Commnity Yotol| 7,830 . (@g)| (90 (ss2)] 7.,144| 7,830
Fund 241 - iy [5} (18) 217 241 Expendablo Endowmonts - Community First Funds:
Croydon Bornet Fund 431 . 3} . 1y arz{ 431
Comnmunity Friends life
Fund a3l . - @ wl gyl 3e3] 38 Fund 21 . . . al w2
Deutsche .
G
Bank Fund 584 . ) 8 @9 sao| sas Give Camden
Evening Endowment
Standard Fund is . . . 1 16 15
Dispossessed Lond
Fund
Secwiti
|(Croydon) 197 0 () 13 sl veal 197 Comed
Conmitment
Fund 152 . 0} . 1) Wz 152
land
Sacurities
Wesiminster
220 . U] . 161 13| 220
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0 0
0 0
Living Cities Richmond
Comamunity Civie Trun 496 - B 1 (36]] asel 496
Fuad 995 140 16} : 47) 1.082] 995 Total 4,550 s8 (26)] _ (9v) (281)] a,210| a,350
tondon . Total
Commur'my ., Endowment .
§°:’°"°" .8 @ " " Funds 20,886 204 (122)] {268 (1,103)] 19,597| 20,886
u . . . [funds 120,980
" Gronts hom endowmens funds are made from the resiricted funds relating to the endowmens funds of the
W:""ﬂ‘”" ” , . . 122 same name, grant for the year ended 31 March 2020 can be soen in note 1.
Fun L - (U] (6} (U] 14 Transfers out of expendable endowment funds 1o restricted funds represent o releass of the capitol
the tondon repeesanting copito] return, The transfers operate under LCF's endowment spending policy and allow further
LegUp Fund ?47 - (2} - (U] 333 347 application of the funds a3 graa.
Other Transfers from the permanent endowment fund Pedlar’s Acre Frus to restricted funds reprosents the
Community reloase of capital os aflowed under the Toial Return Qrder granted by the Charity Commission 1o that the
Firgt Funds | 3,257 6 @1 (40} (84| 38| 3,257 funds may be applied 1o grants. Further details can be found in nete 18.
Total 5,628 136 33| (as) (108)| s.s27| s628
| Expendable endowments - Other funds:
Cresswell 15 Restricted funds
Trust 66 . . U] {6} 39 66
Llambeth > ) 1
Endowment “
Fund 1,186 . [ta) 07 Byl v 118 2019}
Lawishom £000 I £000 |
Fund 333 - 12} ) 9} 315 333 LCF holds many restricted funds, o sample of which are shown in tha ans below along with tolals frum
Portuguese eoch typé of donor.
Fund 520 : 14 ol 16} 91| 620 Building Srenger Brain
South London Together 27 32 59 - - 27
Opportunity
| Capeo Earts . .
Fund 158 . 0 3] @l 1sel 1se ;‘: ;E:"’ Coun ""h:d " 139 ”5‘]' |'
. decorating . . .
Woandsworth 4 i U] {1
Comnmuniy Clarion Business Starkup
Fund 515 . 31 {4) [38) a70|  51S | Program 10 - . (5} s 10
Total 2,878 - anl (@Y (109)| 2,718| 2.878 ‘ci:";m ?{9*";’ " s " . s
Total Expendable Endowments 15.387] 16,336 mmnies fur 11 12) . =
Clarion Re-frain
Permanent Endowments: Progeom 12 . 9] . 2 12
Batner P .
£ . zs - - - L3} 70 75 Sm:m » : n: = : 1,255 ' ul? : |: 3
Booutoy Trus | 1399 . ) . Bs)] 1.338] 1.399 f—uﬁz :swo ' te ‘
mic Reliel
Pedlar's Acre .
ommy s . .
Trus 2,580 58 s) 190) 205]] 2.328| 2,580 | Community Cash 17 117 2
Deutsche Bank small
grants fund 0n 84 . 62 129 ]
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Elephant and Caste
Community Fund

lendlease]

(54)

—
Jl65170)
April |
2019 Ml Income Immi
€000 £000

Evening Standard Food
fot London - Citi funded

Evening Stondard Food
for London - Geants fund

Evening Standard
Dispoasseased Fund
| Anged Town

o}

Evening Standard
Dispossessed Fund -
Save London Lives

680

rLoy

{n

n2s)| 206

Evening Siandard
Dispossessed Fund -
Homelessness Fund

344

(80)

264

Mayor's Office for
Policing & Crime
(MOPAC) - Violence
Reduction Unit Fund

1,297

| |

(71)

Micrasch Fund

70

11.368)

70

Mohn Westdcle
Foundation Fund

90

[180)

(90)

Norton Rase Fulbright
Fund

28

{40)

28

25

Peabody Community
Fund

700

(295)

a2

Evening Standard
Dispossessed Fund - The
Excluded Initiative

225

228

Redbridge Community
Projects Fund

3)

Regens Ploce
| Community Fund

U]

Spon Englond Active
Communities Fund

224

1218)

Grenfell Children and
| Young People’s Fund

1,166

46

{571)

641

Lombeth - Healthier for

48

33

48

| Longer
lombeth Wellbeing Fund

12

78

73)

17

12

LondSec - Capital
Commirment Fund

51

140}

5\

LandSec - Wastminster
Fund

71

21)

59

71

Uiving Cities Community
Fund

33

[65)

128

33

London Communities

Coronavirus Appeal

London Impact Awards

129

(129)

Mayer's Offica for
Policing & Crime
[MOPAC)

(30

[23)

Mayor's Office for
Policing & Crime
[MOPAC) - Violence
Against Women ond
Girls Fund

26

118}

The Segro Community
fund for London

93}

27

The Wembley Pork
| Community Fund

114

85

{123)

76

114

UKCF & National
Emergencies Trus
Ceronavirus Appea!
{londoa Allocation]

46

UKCF Tompon Tox
Community Fund

ns

{315)

Unlocking Potential

26

12

26

Wimbledon Foundation
| Community Fund

63

(129}

Youth Seciol Action

416

252}

{20)

Orher grant making
funds

402

1,651

{2.070}

153

Toto) grant moking
funds

2493

7.888

Endowment funds
{revenue element)

(8.643)

394

| Beautoy Trust

22

34

74

22




CIMCern

Croydon Community

Fund i2 8 (3] 7 13 12
Dewtsche Bonk Fund 59 10 - 70 (1)) 59
Evening Siandard

Dispossessed Appeal

Fund - Croydon 21 6 . 03) 13 21
Evening Standard

| Dispossessed Fund 276 82 - 53 amn 276
tombeth Endowmant

Fund 16 S - 3 24 16
tiving Communities Fund 138 19 - {157) o 138
London Community

Foundation Fund 3 2 - - s 3
tove Kingsion Fund {9) 2 - 3 (1)} \)
Peckhom Fund {9). S - 3 [1)] 91
Pedlar's Acse Trus 85 5 (103) 89 76 85
Richmond Civie Trust 12 1 91 1 15 12
the London Leg Up Fund ({R}] 8 - (3) {{AH
Vietoria Foundation Fund 3 9 [14) 6 14 13
Wandsworth Community

Fund 2) 17 [(E] 4 a 2]
Wesiminster fund 33 7 - 9 39 33
Other endowment funds

{income element) 787 207 [250) 176) 666 787
Total endowment

funds (revenue

element) 1446 440 (386) (139) 1.361 1446
Total Restricted

Funds 4,141 8,328 (9.029) 253] 3493 4,141
The funds of the Charity include restricted funds listed obove; the closing bolonce represents the
urexpended balonces of income held on trust from specific purpose. They tale into occount multhyear
commitments to be paid 1 charitable organisations in huture financial yeors.

Grant-moking Funds:

Funds held for the purpose of grant maling 1o communities, groups and projects as defined by tha purpose
of eoch fund.

Transfers:

Translers in, generally repeesent o releasa of the capital from endowment funds. Tronsders ow, generally
tapeesent the pooling of the fund with other funds of simidar purpose a1 the poini of owarding groats.
COVID-19 Response Funds:

In late March 2020, followlng the cutbreak of the COVID 19 pandemic, the Charity launched The London
[« irus Appect. Before the year end, it hod received the first restricted funds into the Appesl. The
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Charity also received the first elemens of the london afiocation of cestricted funding from rhc Nmronul
Emergencies Trust Coronavirus Appeol and via UKCF (the Charity, alongside the C i

network in UK, was selected o1 o the preferred delivery Charity for the NET Appedl]. On both of thete
funds, the primary hundraising end grantmoling activity has occurred in 2020/21.

Grenfell Young Peaple’s Fund:

Followlng the closwro of the Grentell Tower emergency fund from the Evening Stondosd Dispossassed Fund
ond the Astists for Geenfell Appeals, legocy funds held were consolidated to form the Grenfel Young
Peopla’s Fund. This fiveyeor Initiotive was 36t up 10 suppert children and young people offected by the
trogedy. In oddition to the consolidated funds, the Charity recaived o 1estricted donation from the Royal
Borough of Kensington ond Chelsea of £410,000 ln 2018/19. Any new funds raised in relation to the
| Grenfel Tower ore now added to this Fund.

16 Designated Funds

The tangible fixed assats fund of £13,000 [2019: £¢,000] sepresants 1o book value of the Charity’s
langibla assers. The amount has been separated from the Charity’s general unrestricted funds {free
reserves} in recognition of the foct that the aisets ase essential 1o doyto-doy operotion of the Charity and
should therefore not be considered realisable 1o meal commitments.

During the year lo 3| March 2019, the Trusteas elected to dasignate a fund of £50,000 to support The
LCF's digite] development programme. No funds have been added or spent fram this fund in the year 10

31 March 2020. Funds are expected 1o begin to be spent in 2020/21.




Assots of cach charity at 31 March 2020 LCF!  Peodlar’s;

j Acro Trust
£000! £000)
On 21 May 2009, the Cherity Commissi thorised a uniting di for registration and

occounting purposes between The London Community Foundation (:honry no. |0°l263) ond
Pedlar’s Acte Trust (charity no. 205817). Al the date of the uniting direction the assets of Pedlar's
Acre Trust wese volued ot £1,843,330.

The transactions and assets of the seporate charities for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
shown below:
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18 Application at the power of total return to
Pedlar’s Acre Trust

2020} 2009,
£000/, £000:
The investmens power of il ratum was granted by o Charity Commmlon Orderon 17 lanucry 2011,
The Chatity received odvice from its logal advisors Bates Wells & Braithwaite with regords 1o the uso of
the power and ensuting its uso does not prejudice the ability of the Chatity 1o support both current and
Ruture beneficiaries.

This power permits the Trustees to invess ty endowed funds to imise total return
and opply an appropriate portion of the unapplied uml return income each year. Until the
power is exercised fo tronsfer o portion of unappliod total seturn to income {os disclosed in the
noto below), the unapplied total return remains invested as port of the permanent endowment.
The Trustees hove selected the date of the valuation for total retura purposes to be the valuo of the
endowment fund at 31 March 2004. Podlor’s Acre Fund hos been in existonco since 17th contury,
howaver no valuation is availoble lor the Charity prior 50 31 March 2004. At this dato the Fund was
valed a1 £1,836,806, The note below shows the apening unappliod tosal retsm and fund Hensfor in
the yeor.

The power of tota! return allows the Trustees to decide in cach year how much of the

unapplied total return is transferred to income funds and so is avoileble for gronsmaking

expenditure. During the yeor to 31 March 2020 tho Tristees elected to transfer 3.5% of the

valyo of the fund as a1 31 December 2019 to income funds, 3.5% being the amount LCF aims
to spend of its permanent endowment funds holding totol return power under its endowment
spending policy.

The Trustees decided thai the duty 1o be evenhanded o huture and present beneficiaries was hifilled by
following LCF's standard policy in 2019/20.

The investment fund and application of total return to permanent endowment funds is as follows:

Opening balance ol 01 Apail 2019 23,198 2,580] 25,778
tncome 9.738 bl 9,796
Expendi (10390 15)] (10,403)
| Fund transfers in/ (out} {noto 18} 90 90) -
03303 O i (905) {205)| (1.110)
Net movemant in funds {1.4¢ {252)| (1,719)
Closing bolance as at 31 March 2020 21,7 2,328 24,059]
Tangiblo fixed assets 13 . 13
Fixed asset invesiments 18,458 2,328| 20.786|
Debtors 585 - 385
Cosh at bank ond in hand 5,195 -l 5.198
Croditors: omounts falling due within ono year (2.520] -1 (2,520))
Not assots as at 31 March 2020 21,73 2,328{ 24,059
| Funds of the Charity
Expendable endowment lunds 15,387 -| 15,387
| Permanent endowment funds 1,882 2,328| 4,210
Restricted funds 3,695 -l 3.698
Uniestricied funds 767 - 67
Closing balance os ot 31 Match 2020 21,731 2,328 24,039]

g value of per d 01
__pnl 2019 2,380 2,580
Less: Value of endowment ot 31 March 2004 {1.837) (1.837)
Opening volue of fied tote! return at 01
April 2019 743 743
Add: Investment return Income 38 63
Add: return fised (loss) / goin on in (208) 107
Less: Investment manogement and legal costs (15) (20
Unappliod total return beforo transfor to incomo 581 893
Less: unapplied total return opplied® * (90) {150
Sub-total unapplicd total roturn as at 31 March an 74
2020
Add: Valuo of endowment at 31 March 2004 1.837 1,837
Por d includi lid total
roturn as at 31 March 2020 2,328 2,580

** During 2017/18 the transfer mode for the unapplied totol return wos incorrect. An odditioncl
wansfer has been made in 2018/ 19 to oecount for the difference. Thesefore, the ronster made
in 2018/19 consists of £96,724.46 relating to 2018/19, and on odditional £53,422.05
relating to 2017/18, giving o combined totat of £150,166.51.
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19 Funds held in capacity as Agents -
Deptford Callange Trust

| 2020, 2019

£000 £000;
LCF manages the Deptiord Chollmge Tmsr {OCT) Fund on behalt of DCT as ar: agent and
distributes the Fund to the benefi ions selected by DCT. As the principal, DCT is
responsibla for ensuring the charitablo application of the fund.

Al the yearend date the following assets ond liabilities relating to the Fund hove been
excluded from the bolanco sheet:

Cash ot bank g 32
Grant payable [ [44]
Total funds held in capacity as Agents p (12

20 Related Party Transactions

As por noto 6 the Trustees are not remunerated, and no expenses have boen incuired in 2020
{2019: Q).

The total value of unrestricted donations made by the Trustees of the Charity for the benefit of
the Charity during the year ended 31 March 2020 wos £118,704 {2019: £15,050}.

In the year ended 31 March 2020 no gronts were made to organisations where o Trustee of
member of the Senior Monagement Team held a declarable interest.

However, the following declarations were made i in | 2019:

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Lewish: king Up received pay of £35,000
under the MOPAC Victims' fund. Benjamin Clarkson (Director of Financo & Resources) is @
Trusteo of Lewisham Speaking Up. The Director of Finance & Resources has no influence on who
recoives grants from these peogrammes. There are no simitar transactions during the year ended
31 March 2020.
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21 Analysis of grants

21a Analysis of grants by recipient

otal 2020
£000

Grants awarded to institutions 618 9.039
Grants awarded to individuol. 147 32
TOTAL 765 9,091

Tha moijority of the grant making a1 LCF is to charities and community groups eoch year. In the early
part of tho financial yoar, LCF also mode its fino! grant awards to individuals under tho funds sot up
by Clarion Housing Group.

The velue shown in this note differs to the volue of grants paycble in note 3, due to grani setuns
and odjustments o historic creditors during the year.

We have listed below the instintions who have been owaided £40,000 or more in the year in tota!,
from LCF. These moy have come from one or mote fram our strategic themes, 10 we have separated

out the total gronts awarded by theme.

21b Analysis of grants by theme

Frarcis Sotway (Chair) was appointed os a Trustee of Peobody Trust in May 2019 following o

merger between Peabody Trust and Town & Country Housing Group, which he cheired. LCF

has o longstanding relotionship with Peabody Trust and operates the Pesbody Community Fund,

along with o number of other smaller funds. During the yeor, donations totalling £446,000 were
made to the Peabody Community Fund and Pecbody Youth Violence Fund.

During the yeor ended 31 March 2019, The Cranfield Trust received grants totalling £8,650
through the Evening Standard Dispossessed Fund, Gaynor Humphreys (Trustee) is o director of
The Cronficld Trust. Gaynor Humphreys hos no direct involvement in the grant awards for this
pregromme. There were no similor ransactions during Ite yeor ended 31 March 2020.
In the year ended 31 March 2019, the English Touring Opero received grants of £15,000,
through the Cockayne Fund. Tim Ingram (T rustee) has served on the Developmen SubCommittee
of the English Touring Opera since March 2019. Tim tngram has no direct involvement in the
grant awards of this programme. There were no similar tronsactions during the year ended 31

000 000 000 o o
Connect ,406 0 3406 01 (4] 301
Future 569 0 569 83 [+] 183
Thrive 083 32 118 34 147 T3]
Total 9,058 32 9,090 618 147 765
Connect: 'Ia:kl:ga isolotion in London and helping people feel connected and purposehd.”
Future: “Empoweting young pooplo 1o holp shapo our Capital and their futwes.”

Thrive: *Suppotting winerable Londoners live, work and thive in London.”

The maijority of the grantmaking at LCF is lo ¢hasities and community groups each year. In the eorly
part of the financia! yoar, LCF also made its final grant owards to individuals under the funds set up
by Clarion Housing Group. The Charity’s new stictegy now focuses on investing in charitable
oo
Thg_vu!uo shown in this note differs to the value of grants payable in note 3 due to grant retuins and
cdjustments 1o historic creditors during the year.

Wo have listed below the organisctions awarded £40,000 or more in tha year in total kom the
Charity. Thoso may come from ona or moro of our strategic themes, so we havo separaiod out the

Maich 2020.

total grants aworded by theme.
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21¢ Charitable organisations awarded £40,000
or more in the year total

Jan Trust 200,000 - - 200,000 1 The Dwoyne Simpson

SPEAR Housing Association Foundgtion /Dwaynamics - |_50.000 - 50,000 1
Limited - - {137,500 137,500 2 Good Shepherd Voluntary

Gloss Door Homeless Charity - . 124,093 124,093 2 Orgonisation - | 49.996 - 49,996 1
Barnardo's/Nationat FGM Southside Young Leaders

Centre 98,581 - - 98,381 2 Acodemy -1 49990 - 49,990

ML Community Enterptise 47,661 49812 - 97,473 2 Godwin Lawsen Foundation .| 49,738 . 49,738

Ace of Clubs - - | 95.470 95470 3 | Croydon BME Forum - | 49.738 - 49,736

The VIP- Vidlance - Academy Achievers - | 49.550 - 49,550

Intervention Projoct - | 88,545 - 88,548 3 The Ben Kinsello Tsust . | 48,545 . 48,543

Choos Theory - | 88.090 - 88,090 Hocknay Wick FC 10.000| 38,545 . 48,345

The Greenleaf Trust Utd - | 86,630 - 86,630 The Show Ciib - | 47.000 - 47,000

Ambition, Aspire, Achiove - | 80.076 - 80,076 HOPE not hate Charitable

The Spires Centre - - 79,153 79.153 Trus 46,550 - - 46,550 2
The dFront Project Lid 10,000| 68,545 - 78,348 4 Poplar Hausing Ad

LEAP Sciance and Maths Regeneration Communily

Schools - | 77,870 - 77.870 1 Association bid, 45,970 - - 45,970

Making Communitias Work Solidarity Spoits -] 45.000 - 45,000

& Grow 7.616( 56.211 - 63,827 3 The Clement James Centre - | 45,000 - 45,000

Prospex -1 61,794 - 61,794 3 PSHE Association 44,818 - - 44,818

Stieets of Growth - | 53,191 8,000 61,191 3 Homeless Link - - | 44400 44,400

GOAL {Gespel Ock Action Midoys Somali Development
| Link} 10,000| 49,900 - 59,900 2 Network - | 44,319 - 44,319 1
Keydlite CIO - | 52,426 7.195 59,621 3 Lancaster West Childsen's

Unigue Tolent CIC - | 59,555 . 59.333 3 Community Netwsik -] 43,994 - 43,994 1
Newham All Stor Sports Lotymer Christion Fellowship

Accdemy 10000| 37,415| 9,750 57,168 q Trust - | 43.647 - 43,647 1
The S Matthew's Project . 6,234 - $6,234 Kensington and Chelseo

WISE Youth Trust - 5.977 - 877 foundation 43.014 - - 43,614

StigatDoctors - | 55.165 - ,168 Third Age Project 43.000 - - 43,000

The London Sports Trust 55,098 - - ,098 [ Usbonwise london Uimited .343| 34.530 - 42,87,

Anti-Tribalism Movament -1 51,016 016 2 Fight tor Change Foundation - | 42,270 - 4 7

East tondon Dance - - | 50,000 ,000 Mutic Fusion 41,612 - - 41,6

insfitute of Contemporary Rio Ferdinand Foundation 40,671 - - 40,67 1
Arts - - | 50,000 50,000 1 Migration Museum Projec! 32,479| 7.689 - 40,168 2
5.P.1.D Theatre Compony - - |_50.000 30.000 1

Studio Voltoire - - | 50,000 50,000 1

Oceon Youth Connexions -_|_50.000 - 50,000 1
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Prior Year Comparatives

Statement of Financial Activity for the year to Refers to note 2 Income
31 March 2019

- - ed W Re ed do e ota oto Unras"i_:lcd"; Rcs'riuedJ
d d d 019 018 funds] fonds
000 000 000 000 000 fro00]
Income and endowments from: - o
Bonations and 20 Income from donations and legacias
legacies 2a 816 7,441 198] 8,4551 15,950 Teusts and foundations 191 2,417 17| 2,625 1,765
teosmenh 2b 248 436 63| 747) 734 | Cosporates 298 2,069 13] 2380 6989
rodi)
e T 2% 53 o ol s3|  3a toce public avhoriles 72 696 | _7es 340
Charitable Individuals 122 239 168 529 4,507
activities 2d 130) Nationa! public ’
Total income 1,117 7,877 261| 9,255] 16,688 autharities 133 2,020 .| 2153 2.349
Exponditure on: >
Roising funds___|_ 30| 273 a] 140]___567] 731 Total 818 7441 - 198]84sS5| 13950
Charitobla activities: 2b Income from investments
G 3b 749 7743 | & 7,059 Interes receivable 7 - - 17 12
c;m“,.—’,';"‘""“ 24 4924 17 Investmen! income 231 436 s3] 730 722
development 3¢ 15 49 N 64 168 Total 248 436 63| 747 734
T°'°(' o] 1,187 7.796 140] 9.122] 17.958 2¢ Income from other trading activities
Net (expenditure) / income )
befora invastment gains 70) 81 21| 32| g Rentol income 33 | s3] 34
and loyses Totol | s3] - | s3] 3a
Nﬂf (losses} / 2d tncome from choritoble activities
gains on N
investmenis 20 . 1252| 1272|258 Tuois ond foundations | - | I ] oo
Net Total
(expenditure)
/ income {50) 81 1,373 1,404} (1,012)
Transfer In / {out)
between funds 14,15 27 763 790) . .
Net movement 2019 Total income
in funds 23) 84a 383] 1.404) (1,012 2018 Totol i 1,081] 15,376 251 16,688
Reconciliation of funds: e come 061 6] | 160,683
Totad ot
01 Ap:i 2018 774 3,297 20,303 24,374 25,386 774
Total ot 31
March 2019 753 4141 20,886 25,778] 24.374 751
All of the octivities of The London Community Foundation derive from continuing operations. There
are no recognised gains and losses other than thoss shown cbove. Restricted tncome ond
Expenditure includes octivitias related to the Grenlell Tower emergancy appec), which occounts for
tho doczcase in income and expenditure when pased to tho prior yoar.
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;‘ Unrestricted ‘ Restricted Endowmont 'i Total 1 Totat
i funds funds: funds| 2019, 2018
£000!" £000

Unvoslndedﬂ Resmﬂod“ Endowmenw Tctul!!
funds; hmds! funds; 2019/

:ooo\ £000ii  £000/

3a Expenditure on raising funds
investment monagement costs:

17,058 ’

Staff costs 4 - - a 3
Other direct costs 1] - 140 141 101
Allocated support .
costs 2 - . 2 1 Refers to note 12 Analysis of net assets between funds
Cost of raising donations and legacies: . " "
Stoff costs 243 . . 243 364 ' " Unrestricted . Designated Restricted. Endowment 1{ Total
y N funds i funds | funds ; funds| 2019
Other direct costs 28 - - 28 110 y | it i 1t
Allocated k £000"! £000: £000 £000)i £000.
comu support 126 . . 126 138 fund balances os at 31 March 2019
Cost of generating rental i | Represented
Stalf costs 4 4 R Py 2 Tangible fixed assets 1] [ 1] 0 6
- Fixed asset
Other direct costs 14 - - 14 1) investmenis 259 0 735 20,886 | 21,880
Allocated support Curseni ossets — cash 310 30 3,974 0] 4334
costs 1 - - ) 1 e )
assets -
Total 423 a 190]  se7| debon N2 o 1,453 ol 1765
3b Expenditure on charitable activities: grant romme Credirers: amounts
Grants poyable - 7.696 | 70961 16,359 falling duo within one
Staff costs 445 ] . 446 446 year 1186) o (2,02)) 01 12.207)
her di ) Total 695 56 CAL)) 20,886 25,778 |
Othes direct costs 46 = 47 30 The resricted funds repteiemed by fixed asset uwesrmem) are made up of o few endowmens funds |
Allocated support where ICF's g policy has d ined the portion of the capital gain on those
costs 303 - - 303 224 funds which should be spens, but the investment assets will nal be drawn down uniil spending plans
aze finglised.
Totol 749 7,743 .-l 8.492] 17,039 The totol unreclised gains as a1 31 March 2019 i on revoluation in respect of
3¢ Expenditure on charitable activities: ity development listed investments and are os follows:
Staff costs . 24 . 24 85 Total unrealised gains included above:
her di On listed investments | 7.959] 6,691
Other direct costs - 25 S 25 32 Reconciliotion of movements in unrealised gains:
Allocated support Unreolised goins as at 01 Apiil 2018 6,692 5,685
costy 15 - . 15 Sl tess disposals in year {1 754
Sub-total 6,691 6,439
Tota} L a9 64 168 Add aet (losses} / gains arising on revaluation arising in- 1,268 253
|yeor
Tota! unrealised gains as ot 31 March 2019 7,959 6,692
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| Transfer

Bal. 01 N Transfes Bal. 01 R N N
eﬂpo'u Income | Expenditure in /| ivestmens| Total| Toral ‘Aprit Income| Expenditure in/] 1vostmens| Totall Total
2018 . {out) gain / 2019 2018 2018 {out) gain / 20191 2018
e £00C ! £000 £000! -~ £000]| (loss) £000| - £000}-- £000 . _£000; £000 £000 {loss} £000} £000
LCF holds both dable ond d funds. Many of LCF's endowment funds have Expendable Endowments - Community First Funds:
benefited from maich funding in addition to donations made to funds, received from the government Barnet Fund 401 . (3) . 33 43) 401
schemes Grossroots Grants 2008201 1) and Community First {2012:2015). A selection of the funds, are ) 1 N
Histed below along with totas for each scheme. Frionds tife
€ ndable endowe Fund i9 - [0}, . 2 21 19
- s X

xpendable en: meonts - Grossroots Grants Funds Give Comd
Bromley CF Endowmen)
rc‘:gmﬁw 23 2] 3 | 2a1| 23 Fond i3 - (0 () ! 13 15

. 4

= o 12l B3] J Lond Secuiies
Croydon. Copita)
Community Commitment
Fund 341 - 2} 15} 29 363 341 Fund 178 . (1 138) 13 152 178
Deutsche Bant ’ Land Securities
Fund 594 . 151 130) 25| s8a|l 594 Westminster
Evening Fund 236 - (1] [34) 9 220 236
Standard living Cities
Dispossessed Community
Fund {Croydon}| 204 . 2} (3) 8 1971 204 Fund 1.044 . forf {9 . 76| 995| 1.044
Evening Londen
Standord Community
Dispassessed | Foundation
Fund 3,480 - Re)| {230 1a1| 3365| 3480 Fund 63 . ) . s 48 63
Lombeth Love Kingsion
Fch'zm"ﬂ"r 210 . , 2 2 Fund 102 13 [0 . 8 122 102

S - {1} 2} ! 4 9 The London
Peckhom Fund 143 - U} 2 13 152|143 . | Legp Fund 322 A @ B 2| 37l 322
RollsRoyce Other
Fund 34 . . (9 ©l 1 3s 34 Community
Ruth’s Fund 124 . U] (2} 1 132 124 First Funds 3.084 17 9 79 254) 3,257 3.084
Victorio | votat 5464 30 (33 (27y) a38| 3.028] 3,464
:""’:"""" 166 3 3 5 75 166 Expendablo endowments - Other funds:

> - 2 & Cresswell Trun 63 . ) o) 3 86 63
Wandsworth th
Educationol Lombe
fund. 127 1y (0}, S, 131 122 Endowment
Westminster Fund .21 . [t4] 21) 93 1,186 1,121
Fund 87 - (3) (5} 16 303 87 Lewisham Fund 32 - {2) 151 28 333 312
Other
Geassroots
Grants Funds 1,5€1 - [10} (28] 2 1,636 1,581
Total 7,827 - (57) (324) 384| 7.830| 7.827
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Refers to note 15 Restricted funds

i v ] f{tronsfor | ]
80101 i ster | 1
em; i/ Binvostment §
i i (out) § goin'/ § Income @ Expenditure |
‘ W <00 il (1035) £000 £000)] £000
Portuguese Grant making funds
Fund 580 - (4} (&3] 49 620 580 Building Stonger Britain
South London Togethes (8) 398 [353) d 27| pg
Opportunity Copeo Earls Court Fund (54) 153 _[98) - 1 {54}
| :;"‘:d <] 168 L (4 3, 138 - Closion - docorciing fund . @ i 1w -
C&:nm:mi'y Clation Business Start up
Fund 299 . 14 ©l 20  sis| 499 | Progrom 25 - (1) U] 10 25
Clarien Digital
:ﬁ: 2373, 168 (8) 143) 197 28781 2,373 Communitios Fund 0 79 74) . 15 \a
Expendabls Clasien ReTrain Program 64 . (32) (20) 12 64
Endowments | 15,866 198 (108)| (640) 1,019| 16,336} 15,866 Clarion Rework Program 17 . (31) 20 & (k4
Permanent Endowments: Cockoyne Fund 70 956 {1.023) - 3 70
Barnet Cenmic Relief RND
Endowmen) 73 . [} - 3 75 73 Community Cash . . ¥4 . 17 .
Beoutoy Trus 1,303 . (8} - 04| 1,399} 1.308 Croydon Trom Disoster 2 - 12l . - 2
Pedlor’s Acre Deutsche Bank small grants
Trust 2,580 [-X] [20) (150) V07| 2,580] 23580 fund 13 - (36} [ (172) 13
Richmond Clvic leph \
Trust 481 - (4} - 19 496 481 m:::::i?;gucn:“ i
Totatl 4,437 -5 {33) (150) 233| 3,530 3437 {lendlease} 57 50 (53} - 54 57
Total Evening Standard Food for
Endowment tondon - Citi funded - 59 - 26} - 33 59
Funds 20,303 261 (¥41) (790) 1,232 20,888 | 20,303 Evening Standord Food for
London - Grants fund 33 - 03} - 18 33
Evening Stondard
Dispossassed Fund - Estates 27 . - (27) - 27
Evening Standard
Dispossessed Fund Angel
Town 18 . 112 . 6 18
Evening Standard
Dispossessed Fund - Sove
London Lives - 665 789 330 206 -
Grenfell Fire Appect-

Autists for Granfell 223 46 - [269) - 223




Grentell Fire Appeal -
Evening Standard

345

Income

£000

51

Expenditure
£000

Transfer
Lin/{out}
£000

{596)

Total
2019
£000

545

Grenfell Children and
Young Poogple's Fund

461

{147)

852

1,166

Lambeth - Healthier for
tonger

(57)

105

48

[57]

Lombeth Wellbeing Fund

18

86

(92)

12

tondSec - Capital
Commitment hund

a3

51

tondSec - Westminster fuad

53

71

Living Cities Communily
Fund

89

(80)

33

Mayor's Office for Policing
& Crime {(MOPAC)

2,020

11,868)

(92}

Mohn Weylate Foundation
Fund

44

(44)

Norton Rose Fulbright uad

Peubody Community Fund

30

(389}

8¢

Radbridge Community
Projects Fund

175

(178}

Reducing Isolotion Fund

(27)

27

Rogents Place Community
Fund

(4}

Sport Englond Active
Communities fund

224

224

224

The Segro Community Fund
for tondon

32

(83)

32

The Wembley Pask

13

14

(UL

114

nu3

Community Fund
UXCF Tampon Tax
Community Fund

284

Unlocking Potantiol

26

{275)

20

Wimbledoa Foundation
Community Fund

62

125

P2y

66

26

62

Youth Social Action

90

90

[180)

90

Othor grant making funds

610

1.136

[1.316)

[28)

402

610

Total

2,274

7,382

(7.356)

39s

24695

2,274
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]

Endowmant? funds

(rovenue alament)

Beaufoy Trust 84 34 {96} - 22 84
Bromley Community Fund [} 1 {172) S - 1
| Croydon Community Fund . 7 - 3 12 -
Deutsiche Bonk Fund 23 12 - 24 59 23
Evening Standard

Dispossessed Appeal Fund
|- Croydon 14 7 - L 21 14
Evening Stondard

Dispossessed Fund 220 101 . [45) 276 220
lombeth Endowment Fund 8 [} - 2 16 8
Living C ities Fund 19 20 99 138 19
Londaa Community *

Foundation Fund 2 1 - - 3 2
Love Kingston Fund 2 2 [13) - (L] 2
Peckhom Fund 31 3 [45) 2 {91 31
Pedlar’s Acte Trust 57 . 122) 150] 85 57
Richmond Civie Teust n 11 (10) 12 n
ho London ten Up Fund - 8 119 . (L] .
Victoria Foundation Fund 1 9 - 3 13 1]
Waondsworth Community

Fund - 16 {18) - 12} -
Westminstar Fund 21 7 . 5 33 21
Other endowmen funds

income elemant) 529 240 (100} 118 787 529
Total 1,023|  a9s (aa0)|  368|1446| 1,023
Totol Rostricted Funds 3,297 7.877 {7,796) 763]| 4,141 3,297




On 21 May 2009 the Charity C issi h and
occounting purposes between The Llondon Community Foundation {charily no. |09|263) and
Pedlar’s Acre Trust [charity no. 205817). A1 the date of the uniting direction the ossets of
Pedlor’s Acso Trust wers volued ot £1,843,330.

The transactions and assets of the separate charities for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
shown below:

Opening bolanco at | April 2018 21,794 2,580| 24,374
Income 9,192 63| 9,255
Expenditure (9,103) (20) [9,123)
Fund transfors in/{out) (note 22) 150 {150) -
Gain on investments 1,165 107 1,272
Net movement in funds 1,404 {0) 1,404
Closing balance as ot 31 March 2019 23,198 2,580| 25,778
Tangible fixed assels - 6
Fixed asset i 19,26 2,611 21,880
Debtors 1,765 - 1,765
Cash at bank and in hand 4,335 - 4,335
Creditors: omounts falling due within one year (2,177) (31| {2,208)
Not assots at 31 March 2019 23,200 2,580| 25,778
Funds of tho charities
dable end: funds 16,336 -l 16,336
Permancat endowment funds 1,970 2,580 4.550
| Restricted funds 4,14 . 4,14
Unsestricted funds 75 - 75
Closing batanco ot 31 March 2019 23,198 2,580| 25,778
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Refers to note 18 Application of the power of total
return to Pedlar’s Acre Trust

: . . 201 9 2018
£0°° £000
Iho investment power of total refuin was granted by o Chuury Commission Order on 17 Jonuary
201 1. The charity recoived advice from its logal advisors Batos Walls & Braithwaite with rogard
1o the use of the power ond onwrmg ns uso does nol prejudice the ability of the Charity to
| support both current and futuro beneli

This power pormits tho trusioes to invost p ly ondowod funds to imiso total roturn
ond apply on appropricte portion of the unapplied total rotwn income coch year. Until the
power is exercised to transfer o portion of unappliad total return to income {os disclosed in the
note below), the unapplied total return remains investad o3 part of the pesmanent endowment.
The trustees have sefected the date of the volugtion for tola) return purposes to be the value of
the endowed fund at 31 March 2004, Pedlar’s Acre Fund has been in existence since the 17th
century, however no valtuation is availablo for the charity prior to 31 March 2004. At this date
Pedlar's Acre Trust Fund was valued ot £1,836,806. The note below shows the opening
unapplied totol return and fund transfer in the year.

The power of total return allows the Trustees to decide in each year how much of the unapplied
total ceturn is tronsferred to income funds ond so available for grant making expenditure. During
the yeor to 31 March 2019 the Trustoes elocted to transfer 3.5% of the value of the fund as ot
31 December 2018 to income funds, 3.5% being the amount LCF aims to spend of its permanant
endowment kinds holding Total Return power under its andowment spending policy. The Trustees
decided thot the duty 1o be evenhanded to future and present beneficiarios wos hulfilled by
following LCF's siondard policy in 2018-19

The i fuad and application of total return to d funds is as follows:
Opening volue of permanent endowment 01 April 2018 2.580 2,565
Less: Value of endowmeni ot 31 March 2004 - (1,837 (1.837)
Opening value of unapplied total return ot 01 April 2018 743 728
Add: Investment return Income 63 60
Add: Investment retuin unrealised floss) / gain on i 107 2
| tass: tavestment mancgement and fegal costs [20} (10}
Unapplied total eturn before ransfer to income 893 780
Less: unopplied total raturn applied” * {150} (37
Subriotol ynapplied total roturn a3 ot 31 March 2019 743 743
Add: Value of end at 31 March 2004 1,837 1,837
2 d including unapplied tetal roturn

as at 31 March 2019 2,380 2,580

** During 2017/18 the transfer mode for the uncpplied tota! return wos incorrect. An odditional
transler hos been made in 2018/19 to account for the difference. Therefore, the transfer mode
in 2018/19 consists of £96,724.46 selating 1o 2018/19, and an odditional £53,422.05

relating 10 2017/18, giving o bined total of £150,166.5.
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